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Generation 8 Overview

Generation 8 includes the 32 sets of GGGGGrandparents for Ann Ella Henderson Collier.
Following are a number of previously unknown 'surprises’ regarding these individuals.

8.7

8.9

8.10

8.14

Robert Lamb and Frances Williamson

a) The Lamb family were Quakers - originally in VA and later in SC. Several
Lamb family members were disowned by the Quakers in both locations for marrying a
non-Quaker.

Edmund Waller Stephens

a) His children from marriage #1 (i.e., Benjamin and Dorothy) emigrated to Greene
County in 1824. Edmund's second family emigrated to Kentucky in 1829.

b) The marriage of John Franklin Stephens (son of Edmund) and Elizabeth
Wardlaw (granddaughter of William C Wardlaw) in 1837 in Greene County proved that
the Stephens and Wardlaw families maintained contact during the 1824-1837 time period.
This marriage also proved the Stephens, Wardlaw, Logan, Griffin, and (likely)
Henderson families were neighbors in Donalds, SC prior to 1820.

William C Wardlaw & Lydia Heard

a) William and Elizabeth Wardlaw are the only two (out of 27) of Ann's
grandparents known to have died in Greene County for which we do not have a burial
location. The other 25 individuals were buried in church cemeteries. George's analysis
suggests the couple are buried in the Wardlaw Family Cemetery.

b) Daughter Lydia married Theophilous Murphy - both just 'disappeared on their
way to Texas' per family lore. George suspects that this couple (and William) died of
common cause in summer of 1840 and are buried in the family plot.

c) The fate of Lydia Heard is presently unknown. George suspects that Lydia
actually survived the move to Greene County in 1824 but died sometime prior to 1840.
Further George suspects that Lydia is buried in the Wardlaw Family Cemetery.

Thomas Legg & Jeannetta Nully

a) George's analysis suggests that Thomas and Jeannetta were buried in Beulah
Baptist Church Cemetery. Their son-in-law and daughter were founding members of the
church.

Generation 8
Page 8- 2



8.15

8.16

8.17

Edward Mayes & Nancy Archibald

a) The Mayes family was VERY wealthy. Each of their Wills required about 30
pages to list distribution of assets.

Sarah Caroline Lamb

a) Sarah proved to be the mother of two of Ann Ella's GGrandmothers - Mary
Frances Mayes and Elizabeth Jane Cartee.

b) George suspects (but cannot yet prove) that Sarah Caroline Lamb worked as an
indentured servant in the Mayes household - this would be the means by which she met
husband #1 - Samuel James Mayes.

Charles Montgomery & Margaret Reynolds

a) The Montgomery and Reynolds family were Irish immigrants who sailed on the
same ship to Charleston, SC. Three sets of these children (including Charles & Margaret)
became engaged while on that voyage.
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8.1 Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(father/father/father/father/father)

Husband Marriage Wife
Unknown Date: Unknown
DOB: Location: DOB:
City/State: City/State:
Residence: Children Residence:
Residence: Unknown Residence:
Date of Death: Date of Death:
Cemetery: Cemetery:
City, State: City, State:
Father: Father:
Mother: Mother:
NOTES NOTES
8.2 Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents
(father/father/father/father/mother)
Husband Marriage Wife
Unknown Date: Unknown
DOB: Location: DOB:
City/State: City/State:
Residence: Children Residence;
Residence: Unknown Residence;
Date of Death: Date of Death:
Cemetery: Cemetery:
City, State: City, State:
Father: Father:
Mother: Mother:
NOTES NOTES
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8.3 Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(father/father/father/mother/father)

Husband Marriage Wife

Edmund Waller Stephens Date: Agness Smith Robinson
DOB: Location: DOB:
City/State: City/State:
Residence: Children Residence:
Residence: Benjamin Waller Stephens | Residence:

Sr

(1797-1850)

married

Unknown wife #1
Date of Death: Date of Death:
Cemetery: Cemetery:
City, State: City, State:
Father: Father:
Mother: Mother:

NOTES NOTES

Duplicate of Para 8.9

8.4 Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(father/father/father/mther/mother)

Husband Marriage Wife
Unknown Date: Unknown
DOB: Location: DOB:
City/State: City/State:
Residence: Children Residence:
Residence: Unknown Residence:
Date of Death: Date of Death:
Cemetery: Cemetery:
City, State: City, State:
Father: Father:
Mother: Mother:

NOTES NOTES
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8.5 Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(father/father/mother/father/father)

Husband Marriage Wife
James Matteson Cartee, Sr Date: 1779 Nancy Kimbrell
DOB: 12Nov1759 Location: Loudoun DOB: 1760
County, Va
City/State: Rock Hill, York City/State: Loudoun County,
County, SC Va
Residence: 1779 - Loudoun Children Residence:
County, Va
Residence: 1794 - Spartanburg | John M Cartee Residence:
County, SC (1785-1870)

Date of Death: 3Jun1837

Date of Death: 1830

Cemetery: Big Creek Baptist
Church Cemetery, Williamson,
Anderson County, SC

Cemetery: Big Creek Baptist
Church Cemetery, Williamson,
Anderson County, SC

City, State: Big Creek,
Anderson County, SC

City, State: Spartanburg,
Spartanburg County, SC

Father:
James Willard Cartee
(1733-1802)

Father:
Robert Kimbrell
(1734-1780)

Mother:
Nancy Ann Cullen Dashiell
(1733-1760)

Mother:
Sarah Frances Thompson
(1735-1789)

NOTES

NOTES

James M Cartee Revolutionary Service
Record (Ancestor # A019871)

* Listed as James Carty in Revolutionary
War - 3rd Regiment of SC - date
1Nov1779

* Assigned as Private to Queen's Rangers
- Loyalist Troops (25Jun-24Aug1781)

* Virginia Minuteman

* Pension # S21109

* Service Source # S21109

* Service Description: Col Paten, Triplet
* Posted 13Mar1833 to Pickens District,
SC

Nancy's Grandparents:
a) Peter Kimbrell (1705-1793)
b) Winnefred Gilliam (1720-1780)

There was a military-provided tombstone
for James Cartee - it is still standing in the
Big Creek Baptist Church Cemetery.
However, the original limestone
tombstones for both James and Nancy
likely eroded away within decades of their
burial.

Thus far, George has been unable to find a
burial notice or tombstone photo for Nancy.
My unproven assumption is that she is buried
beside her husband James in Big Creek Baptist
Church Cemetery.

Apparently, Nancy Kimbrell and Thomas
Kimbrell (see para 8.6) were twins.
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Descendants of James Matteson Cartee, Sr and Nancy Kimbrell
James Matteson Cartee, Sr married Nancy Kimbrell (1760-1850) in 1779 in Virginia

1. William C Cartee (1780-1836\) - born in VA
William married Susannah Younger (1791-1843)
1) James E Cartee, Sr (1814-1907)
James married Ann Crawford (1812- ) - 4 Cartees married 4 Crawfords
2) Joshua Cartee (1817-1874)
Joshua married Matilda Finch (1815-1882)
3) Moses Cartee (1822-1869)
4) Rebecca Cartee (1825- )
Rebecca married John Maxwell Crawford (1823- )
5) Nancy Ann Cartee (1826- )
Nancy married Anderson Crawford (1807-1860)
6) Isabella Cartee (1828-1894)
Isabella married James M Crawford (1819- )
7) William Younger Cartee (1831- )

2. John M Cartee (1785-1870) - bornin VA
John married Elizabeth Kimbrell (1789- )
1) Ransom Cartee (1810-1875)
Ransom married Martha Bounds (1811-1845)
2) William James Cartee (1822-1890)
William married Missouri Gilbert (1824-1861)
3) Joseph W Cartee (1823-1908)
Joseph married Sarah Carolyn Lamb Mayes (1819-1884)

3. Caleb Wade Cartee (1790-1871) - born in VA
Caleb married Elizabeth York Siston (1799-1879)
1) James Cartee (1827- )
2) Thomas Spencer Cartee (1832-1907)
Thomas married Susan ?? (1841-1865)
3) Stephen Slaton Cartee (1835-1900)
Stephen married Melinda Kelly (1836-1895)
4) Francis Cartee (1838- )
5) Nancy L Cartee (1840- )

4. Reuben Cartee (1792-1876) - born in VA
Reuben married Juda Oliver (1791-1887)
1) John Spencer Cartee (1811-1875)

John married Mary Smith (1815- )
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2) Delosia M Cartee (1816- )

Delosia married Wadsworth Fleming (1816- )
3) Levi George Cartee (1816-1886)

Levi married Nancy Kimbrell (1820-1886)
4) William F Cartee (1819-1893)

William married Susan Fleming (1821-1897)
5) James G Cartee (1824- )
6) Frances M Cartee (1827-1890)
7) Nancy Mary Cartee (1830-1830)

Mary Polly Cartee (1795-1870) - born in Spartanburg, Anderson County, SC
Mary married John Caleb Kimbrell (1787-1864)

1) James Kimbrell (1817-1864)

2) Caleb Kimbrell (1819-1863)

3) Nancy Kimbrell (1820-1886)

4) Elizabeth Betsy Kimbrell (1825-1855)

5) Mary Ann Kimbrell (1832-1867)

6) Jane Kimbrell (1836-1897)

7) Francis Fielding Kimbrell (1837-1898)

James M Cartee, Jr (1799-1870) - born in Spartanburg, Anderson County, SC
James married Caragh Gilbert (1849- )
1) Rev John C Kimbrell (1788- )
John married Mary Cartee (1797-1878)
2) John Cartee
3) William Cartee
William married Susannah ??
4) Caleb Cartee
5) James Cartee
6) Matthew Gore Cartee
Matthew married Elizabeth Cartee

Mary Elizabeth Cartee (1800-13Jul1878) - born in Spartanburg County, SC
Mary married John Caleb Kimbrell (1793-1864)

1) James Kimbrell (1817-1895)

2) Caleb Kimbrell (1829-1863)

3) Nancy Kimbrell (1820-1886)

4) Elizabeth Betsy Kimbrell (1825-1855)

5) Mary Ann Kimbrell (1832-1897)

6) Jane Kimbrell (1836-1897)

7) Francis Fielding Kimbrell (1837-1898)
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Tombstone - James M Cartee in Big Creek Cemetery, Williamston, Anderson County,
SC

Big Creek Baptist Church, Williamston, SC
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8.6 Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents
(father/father/mother/father/mother)
Husband Marriage Wife
Thomas Kimbrell Date: 2Nov1787 Nancy Holloway
DOB: 1760 Location: South Carolina | DOB: 110ct1772

City/State: Dinwiddie,
Dinwiddie County, Va

City/State: North Carolina

Residence:

Children

Residence:

Residence: 1787+ -
Spartanburg, Spartanburg
County, SC

Elizabeth Kimbrell
(1790-1850)

Residence:

Date of Death: 1840

Date of Death: 1830

Cemetery: Kimbrell Family
Cemetery, Spartanburg, SC

Cemetery: Kimbrell Family
Cemetery, Spartanburg, SC

City, State: Spartanburg,
Spartanburg County, SC

City, State: Spartanburg,
Spartanburg County, SC

Father:
Robert Kimbrell
(1734 -1780)

Father:
John Holloway, Jr
(1745-1818)

Mother:
Sarah Frances Thompson
(1735-1789)

Mother:
Ann Maria Griffin
(1752-1810)

NOTES

NOTES

Thomas has emigrated from Virginia to
Spartanburg District prior to Revolutionary
War but returned to Virginia to serve in the 3rd
Virginia Regiment.

Thus far George has been unable to find a photo
of Nancy's tombstone - no record on
findagrave.com. George did read a researcher's
note which stated that Nancy was buried in the
Kimbrell Family Cemetery.

Apparently, Thomas Kimbrell and Nancy
Kimbrell (see para 8.5) were twins.
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Descendants of Thomas Kimbrell and Nancy Holloway

Thomas Kimbrell married Nancy Holloway (1772-1830) on 2Nov1787 in South Carolina
- Each of their children were born in Spartanburg County, SC

1. Polly Kimbrell (1785- )
- No record of marriage

2. Rev "JC' John Caleb Kimbrell (1788-70ct1864) - died in Metter, Chander
County, GA
John married Mary Polly Cartee (1797-1878) in 1815 in Spartanburg County, SC
- Both are buried in Kimbrell Cemetery, Candler County, GA
1) Frances Fielding Kimbrell (1814-1898)
2) James W Kimbrell (1817-1895)
3) Caleb Kimbrell (1820-1863)
4) Nancy Kimbrell (1820-1886)
5) Elizabeth Betsy Kimbrell (1825-1855)
6) Jane Kimbrell (1836-1897)
7) John Kimbrell (1837-1904)
8) Robert Kimbrell (1839-1865)

3. Elizabeth Kimbrell (1790-1850) - died in Spartanburg County, SC
Elizabeth married John M Cartee in 1805
(Note: John Cartee & Elizabeth Kimbrell had common grandparents)
1) Ransom Cartee (1810-1876)
2) John H Cartee (1812-1860)
3) Elihu Cartee (1814-1898)
4) Moses Cartee (1820-)
5) William James Cartee (1821-1890)
6) Joseph W Cartee (1823-1908)
Joseph married Sarah Carolyn Mayes (1819-1884)
7) Thomas Cartee (1826-1843)

4, Charles Kimbrell (1794- )
- No record of marriage

5. Vincent Kimbrell (1795-1875) - died in Spartanburg County, SC
Vincent married Mary Elizabeth Polly Cartee (1795-1878)
1) James Samuel Kimbrell (1815-1898)

6. Thomas S Kimbrell, Jr (6Feb1796-25Jan1868)
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Thomas married Frances 'Fanny' G. (1789-1880) in 1820

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)

David Casey Kimbrell (1822-1891)
Luke Kimbrell (1825-1902)
Thomas Kimbrell (1828-)

William Kimbrell (1829-)

Adeline Kimbrell (1830-)
Margaret Kimbrell (1846-)

John Caleb Kimbrell and May Polly Cartee
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DAR Information

KIMBRELL, THOMAS Ancestor #: A066192 Service: VIRGINIA - SOUTH
CAROLINA Rank: PRIVATE Birth: (CIRCA) 1760 DINWIDDIE CO VIRGINIA
Death: (CIRCA) 1840 SPARTANBURG DIST SOUTH CAROLINA Pension Number:
R5927VService Source: R5927V; M881, NARA, COMP MIL SERV RECS, ROLL
#954; SC ARCH, ACCTS AUD, #3578, ROLL #83Service Description: 1) CAPT WM
FOWLER, COLS PARKER, HETH - VA2) CAPTS SAMUEL EARLE, MCDOWELL,
COL ROEBUCK - SC Comments ( Overview ) 1) DAR ANALYSIS OF SERVICE IS
SCANNED WITH DATA OF #873166 Residence 1) County: BRUNSWICK CO-ENL -
State: VIRGINIA 2) State: SOUTH CAROLINA

KIMBRELL, THOMAS

Ancestor #: A066192

Service: VIRGINIA - SOUTH CAROLINA Rank: PRIVATE

Birth: (CIRCA) 1760 DINWIDDIE CO VIRGINIA

Death: (CIRCA) 1840 SPARTANBURG DIST SOUTH CAROLINA
Pension Number: R5927V

Service Source: R5927V; M881, NARA, COMP MIL SERV RECS, ROLL #954; SC
ARCH, ACCTS AUD, #3578, ROLL #83

Service Description:

1) CAPT WM FOWLER, COLS PARKER, HETH - VA

2) CAPTS SAMUEL EARLE, MCDOWELL, COL ROEBUCK - SC

Comments (Overview )
1) DAR ANALYSIS OF SERVICE IS SCANNED WITH DATA OF #873166

Residence
1) County: BRUNSWICK CO-ENL - State: VIRGINIA
2) State: SOUTH CAROLINA

Per Roster of South Carolina Patriots in the American Revolution:

After moving to Spartanburg District, Thomas returned to serve in the 3rd Virginia
Regiment. Later in the war he joined Capt. Samuel Earle, Lt. Harry Wood and Col.
Roebuck against the Indians and Tories. In addition, he was under Capt Robert
McDowell, Col. Thomas and Col. Brandon. He was in the Battle of Little River and
Jimmy's Creek. Next, he was under a Capt. McDonald Collins.

Pension Statement South Carolina Spartanburg District

Personally appeared before me the subscribing Justice Solomon Crocker, Sworn to &
subscribed before me 2nd September 1839 who being duly sworn according to law,
deposes & saith, that he was in the Revolutionary war that he served under Colonel
Benjamin Roebuck of South Carolina

Generation 8
Page 8- 14



This deponent further states, that he has a distinct recollection of Thomas Kimbrill, that
the said Thomas was in service with this deponent and there was no other man
commanded by Colonel Roebuck of that name that he has been well acquainted with
Thomas Kimbrill ever since the Revolution that they have both resided in this District

This deponent is well satisfied that, that Thomas Kimball mentioned in the return of the
Comptroller Generals office in this State, is the one who served with him in the war & the
one who is now applying for a pension and the deponent can only account for the mistake
by supposing that it was an error in spelling the name (i.e., should be spelled Kimbrell).

Solomon Crocker, X his mark
Personally came before me, Captain John Collins,

Sworn & subscribed before me 10th day of April 1838 a Soldier and Officer of the
Revolution, who being sworn saith, that he knows Thomas Kimbrell, who is now
applying for a Pension that he has no distinct recollection of him during the war, nor does
he know of any particular act of service rendered by him

But this deponent has conversed with the said Thomas Kimbrell, and the said Thomas has
related particulars, which come within the knowledge of this Deponent, which has
brought him to the conclusion that he was a Soldier of the Revolution.

S/ John Collins

South Carolina State Spartanburg District: Personally came Solomon Crocker of the
District aforesaid and an old Revolutionary Soldier and made oath before me one of the
Justices for said District that he was acquainted with Thomas Kimbrell in the old
revolutionary war about 1780, 1781 and 1782 and that he was a good Soldier [3 lines of
text obliterated] of General Pickens brigade and that to the best of his recollection the
said Thomas Kimbrell was pretty constantly engaged in that line of service for the term
above mentioned. Sworn to and subscribed before me this 10th April 1838.

Solomon Crocker

In 1873, Thomas filed for a pension as listed in the U.S. Revolutionary War Pension and
Bounty-Land Warrant Application Files. Apparently, his application was rejected.

Generation 8
Page 8- 15



Tombstone - Thomas Kimbrell in Kimbrell Family Cemetery
in Spartanburg, SC
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8.7 Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(father/father/mother/mother/father)

Husband Marriage Wife
Robert A Lamb Date: 26Aprl788 Frances Williamson
DOB: 23Mayl1766 Location: River, Saluda DOB: 1770
County, SC
City/State: Guilford, Newberry City/State: North Carolina
County, SC
Residence: 1799+ - Union Children Residence:
County, SC
Residence: Jesse Lamb Residence:
(1792-1838)
Residence: Residence:
Date of Death: Jul1858 Date of Death: 1858
Cemetery: Cemetery:
City, State: Union County, SC City, State: Union County, SC
Father: Father:

Thomas Lamb Jr
(1745-1816)

B: 1745 in Bucks County, Pa
M: 9Jul746 in NC

D: Marl816 in Versailles,
Rutherford County, TN

Samuel Williamson
(1745-1818)

Mother: Mother:
Sarah Moore Lydia Bush Marcy
(1748-15Aprl791) )
B: 1748 in Bucks County, Pa
D: 1791 in South Carolina
NOTES NOTES

Thomas Lamb Jr was disowned by his Quaker
congregation for marrying a non-Quaker.
However, he was granted a certificate to Bush
River MM, South Carolina dated 25Feb1775.
His son Jesse (& a daughter) were then
disowned by the SC congregation for marrying
non-Quakers.

The parentage of Robert A Lamb is suspect -
needs further research.
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Descendants of Robert A Lamb and Frances Williamson

Robert A Lamb (1766-1838) married Frances Williamson (1770-1858) in 1785 in SC

1.

Jesse Lamb (1792-Jun1838)

Jesse married Frances Williamson (1791-1838)

1) Martha Susanna 'Susie' Lamb (1808-1853)

2) Benjamin H Lamb (1812-1876)

3) Sarah Caroline Lamb (1819-1884)

4) Edward Hooker "Squire Ned" Lamb (1823-1899)
5) William Henry Lamb (1830-1889)

6) Jesse Mire Lamb (1831-1899)

William Lamb (1801-7Nov1853)

William married Unity Evans (1811-1895)
1) Emma Victoria Lamb (1850-)

2) Tallulah Jane Lamb (1853-1867)
William married Mary Gregory (1802-1844)
1) Jesse Lamb (1821-1863)

2) Hiram Lamb (1824-1900)

3) Robert Lamb (1825-1880)

4) Mary Lamb (1826-)

5) Francis J Lamb (1828-1860)

6) Isaac N Lamb (1830-1880)

7) James A Lamb (1831-1861)

8) Delilah Lamb (1832-1880)

9) Benjamin Lamb (1832-1860)

10)  Jane Lamb (1835-1894)

11)  Franklin Francis Marion Lamb (1836-1895)
12)  Sarah Lamb (1840-)

13)  Elizabeth Lamb (1840-1894)

14)  Bettie Lamb (1842-1920)

Benjamin H Lamb (1802-7Nov1853)
Benjamin married Lucy Kneece (1801-)
1) Sarah Lamb (1825-)
2) Jonathan Lamb (1827-)
3) David Lamb (1830-)
4) Spencer Lamb (1834-)
5) Thomas Marion Lamb (1836-1922)
6) Elijah Lamb (1837-)
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7) Louisa Lamb (1843-)

Joseph H Lamb (1803-7Nov1853)

Joseph married Mary A Polly Nix (1810-1860)
1) Male Lamb (1820-)

2) Nancy Caroline Lamb (1820-1846)

3) Cynthia Lamb (1827-1860)

4) Benjamin Robert Lamb (1835-1903)
5) Frances Jane Lamb (1838-1880)

6) Isaac N Lamb (1840-1880)

Mary Ann Lamb (1810-1901)

Mary married Hardy Lashley (1790-1840)

1) Richmond Hardy Lashley (1824-1904)
2) William Lashley (1828-)

3) Peter Lashley (1834-)

4) Henry Lashley (1840-)

5) Rebecca Lashley (1841-)

6) Dilla Lashley (1847-)

Lucy Lamb (1810-1899)

Lucy married James Madison Huckaby (1814-1880)
1) Jesse Huckaby (1849-1915)

2) William Huckaby (1850-)

3) Martindale Huckaby (1850-1926)

4) Mary Huckaby (1853-)

Sarah Caroline Lamb (1819-1884)

Sarah married Samuel James Mayes (1823-1842)

1) Mary Frances Mayes (1841-1912)

Sarah married Joseph W Cartee (1823-1908)

1) Nancy Ann Cartee (1844-)

2) Joseph W Cartee (1846-1875)

3) James William Cartee (1847-1931)

4) William Thomas Cartee (1849-1922)

5) Elizabeth Janie Cartee (1851-1885)
Elizabeth married Edmund Waller Henderson (1839-1917)

6) Louisa Cartee (1852-)

7) William Walter Cartee (1858-1943)

8) David Walter Cartee (1859-1918)
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8.8 Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(father/father/mother/mother/mother)

Husband Marriage Wife

Samuel Williamson Date: Lydia Bush Marcy
DOB: 1745 Location: DOB:
City/State: City/State:
Residence: Children Residence:
Residence: Frances Willamson Residence:

(1795-1830)

married

Jesse Lamb

(1792-1838)
Residence: Residence:
Date of Death: 1818 Date of Death:
Cemetery: Cemetery:
City, State: City, State:
Father: Father:
Mother: Mother:

NOTES NOTES
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8.9

(father/mother/father/father/father)

Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

Husband

Marriage

Wife

Edmund Waller Stephens

Date: 31Decl1796

Agness Smith Robinson

DOB: 27Marl777

Location: St Thomas
Parish, Orange County, Va

DOB: 280ct1781
Christened: 5Aprl1782

City/State: Orange County, Va

City/State: St George Parish,
Spotsylvania County, Va

Residence: 1830 - Campbell, Children Residence:

KY

Residence: 1850+ - Kenton Benjamin Waller Stephens | Residence:

County, KY (1797-1855)

Residence: Residence:

Date of Death: 3Jul1864 Date of Death: 1802
Cemetery: Stephens, Family Cemetery:

Cemetery, Kenton City, KY

City, State: Boone County, KY

City, State: Abbeville County,
SC

Father:
Benjamin Stephens
(1754-1839)

Father:
Rev William Robinson
(1709-1792)

Mother: Mother:

Dorothy Jemima Waller Agness Smith

(1756-1836) (1716-1753)
NOTES NOTES

Edmund Waller Stephens married Jane L
Griffen (b: 1788 in Edgefield, SC) on
3Jul1812. Edmund's family moved from SC to
Kenton County, KY in ~1829. Supposedly,
the couple had a daughter Agnes Stephens
(1810-1841). Records indicate that Edmund
and Jane have two daughters named Agnes -
born 20 years apart.

A simple solution: Jane Griffin was married to
husband #1 before she married Edmund Waller
Stephens. She and this unk husband #1 had a
daughter Agnes ?? (1810-1841) - the couple
were divorced or he died prior to her marriage
to Edmund in 1812.

Suspect that Agness died as result of childbirth
complications shortly after the birth of Dorothy.
Her death occurred during the disaster in 1802
after several members of the Stephens clan had
migrated to South Carolina. The trouble was
undefined - but bad enough - for Edmund's
father to travel to their 'rescue’ - although some
of those 'rescued' did not return to Virginia.

There were three daughters of the same name
in the Stephens family - which has caused a lot
of errors by researchers.

1) Agnes #1 - probably born to Jane Griffin by
Jane's husband #1 in 1810

2) Agnes #2 - born to Edmund Stephens and
Jane Griffin in 1830

3) Agness - born to Benjamin Waller Stephens
and wife #1 (Agness was future wife of
William Franklin Henderson) in 1818

Note: George suggests evidence shows that
Agness Robinson Stephens is the correct name
and spelling for wife of William Franklin
Henderson. Rev Will Robinson (1708-1792)
listed his wife as "Agness Smith" in his will as
well as their wedding license. Assuming
Benjamin Waller Stephens (1797-1850) is
father of Agness Robinson Stephens then the
Rev Will Robinson & Agness Smith would be
Agness' GGrandparents.
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A. Descendants of Edmund Waller Stephens and Agness Smith Robinson

Edmund Waller Stephens and Agness Smith Robinson (1781-1802) were married on
31Dec1796 in Orange County, Va

1. Benjamin Waller Stephens (1797-1844) - born in Orange County, Va
Benjamin married wife #1 (-) in ~1817 in Abbeville County, SC
- wife #1 died either at birth of Agness Robinson Stephens or with 2nd infant
1) Agness Robinson Stephens (1818-1873)
Benjamin married wife #2 Margaret Only Wardlaw in 1826
- Since Benjamin was 29 and Margaret 32 at marriage, likely 2nd for both
1- James Benjamin Stephens, Sr (1834-1865)

2. Dorothy Waller Stephens (28Nov1802-11May1844) - born in SC
Dorothy married Zachary Merriwether Logan (13Nov1795-6Aprl872) on
1Jan1818

- Each child was born in Greene County, AL
1) Elizabeth Logan (1820-1872)
2) Andrew Lewis Logan (1822-)
3) Zachary Merriwether Logan (1824-1892)
4) Benjamin Stephens Logan (1826-1854)
5) Agnes Jane Logan (1828-1856)
6) Nancy Ann Logan (1830-1855)
7) Benjamin Stephens Logan (1832-1854)
8) Dorothy Evaline Logan (1833-1905)
9) John Frederick Logan (1836-1889)
10)  Sarah Hudlah Logan (1840-1875)
Zachary Logan married Elizabeth Foster Burroughs Thornton on 5Jan1855

B. Descendant of Jane L Griffin and unk Husband #1

1. Agnes Stephens (1810-1841)
Agnes married Sanford Riley (1810-) on 29Nov1832 in Campbell County, KY
Died 10Jan1841 - buried in Stephens Family Cemetery in Kenton County, KY
1) Virginia Riley (1838- ) - Note 6 years between marriage & 1st child
2) John Riley (1841- )
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C. Descendants of Edmund Waller Stephens and Jane L Griffin

Edmund Waller Stephens and Jane L Griffin (23Jul1788-3May1839) were married on
3Jul1812. Jane died in Kenton County, Kentucky and was buried in Stephens Family
Cemetery, Kenton County.

1. John Franklin Stephens (10Jan1813-9Jun1884)
b: Orangeburg County, SC d: Kenton County, KY
John married Elizabeth Susan Wardlaw (1821-1882) on 15Dec1837
in Greene County, AL
1) Mary Jane Stephens (1837-1922)
2) Edmund Lewis Stephens (1841-1864)
3) William Zachariah Stephens (1845-1907)
4) Leonard Waller Stephens (1848-1940)
5) Lucy Wright Stephens (1850-1906)
6) Annie Stephens (1852-1883)
Note: This marriage provides ‘hard proof' that families of Edmund Stephens and
William C Wardlaw were neighbors near Donalds, SC prior to 1820 plus the two
families remained in contact at least through 1837 - one in KY and one in AL

2. Elizabeth Estes Stephens (1818-1880)
Elizabeth married Simeon Sylvester Stephens (1818-1894)
1) Green Berry Stephens (1834-1920)
2) Thomas J Stephens (1840-1914)
3) William M Stephens (1842-1916)
4) Leroy E Stephens (1844-1929)
5) Joel M Stephens (1845-1865)
6) Mary Elizabeth Stephens (1849-1921)

3 Ezekiel Pickens Stephens (1819-1899)
Ezekiel married Frances Ann Robinson (1829-1865)
1) Edmund Waller Stephens (1852-1856)
2) Robert Stephens (1856-1856)

4. Robert F Stephens (1823-1869)
Robert married Sarah Ann Northcutt (1829-1906) on 7Dec1848
1) Elizabeth J Stephens (1851-)
2) Minerva Isadora Stephens (1852-1942)
3) Ezekial Faris Stephens (1858-1934)
4) Sarah A Stephens (1858-)
5) Leonard E Stephens (1861-1839)
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6) John E Stephens (1867-1885)
7) Roberta Ann Stephens (1869-1962)

5. Mary L Stephens (1828-1897)
Mary married William Abner Broadway (1831-1909
1) Mary Barbara Broadway (1852-1944)
2) Elizabeth Broadway (1854-1927)
3) Rebecca C Broadway (1854-1900)
4) Laura Broadway (1860-)
5) Nancy Ann Broadway (1866-1958)
6) Martha E Broadway (1869-)
7) William Abner Broadway (1869-1944)
8) Emma Broadway (1872-)

6. Agnes Betsy Stephens (1830-1863) - Researchers appear to have children &
husband confused between the two Agnes half-sisters. Sisters apparently named
their children the same - even though the children were born ~14 years apart.

Agnes married ?? Riley (1826- )

1) John Riley (1852- )

2) Virginia Riley (1854- )
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Per 1850 census, Edmund Stephens (age 72) lived in Kenton County, KY and had the
following people living in his household. Edmund was identified as a wealthy farmer
whose property was worth $4000 per the census - his neighbors net worth was typically
<$500.

1. Elizabeth Stephens Age 32 Born in SC

2. Ezekiel Stephens Age 30 Born in GA - married within past year
3. Mary Stephens Age 19 Born in KY - married within past year
4. Frances Stephens Age 19 Born in KY

5. John Riley Age 9 Born in KY - grandson

Edmund Waller's 2nd wife was Jane Griffin (1788-1839) - who died on 23Jul1788. She
was the mother of Ezekiel Pickens Stephens (1819-1899). Edmund's first wife was
Agness Smith Robinson, daughter of Rev William Robinson and Agness Smith of
Spotsylvania County, Virginia.

Shortly after the younger Benjamin (i.e., brother of Edmund Waller Henderson) and his
wife Agness Nelson Stephens arrived in South Carolina there was what Aunt Milly (a
Negro slave) termed 'serious trouble’. Benjamin, Sr and his youngest son Leonard went
south on the Great National Road to "bring them out”. The nature of the trouble was not
specified but it is known that Agness Smith Robinson (1st wife of Edmund Waller
Stephens) died there. It is also known that members of the first group of settlers suffered
for years from a disease similar to malaria.

Aug2016 - George believes he has found proof that several of the Henderson-related
families were neighbors both in SC and in Greene County during the early 1800s. My
reasoning for this was a marriage between Elizabeth Susan Wardlaw (1821-1882) and
John Franklin Stephens (1813-1884) which occurred in Greene County on 15Dec1837.
The couple spent their married lives in Kenton County, KY and are buried there.

John Franklin Stephens was a son of Edmund Waller Stephens and Jane Griffen -
presumably he went with them from SC to Kenton County, KY in 1829. Otherwise, he
went to Greene County in 1824 (or 1827) where he married in 1837 and then decided to
move to Kenton County, KY. In either case, there must have been communication
between the Stephens & Wardlaw families in Kentucky and those in Greene County - at
least between 1824 and 1837.

Elizabeth Susan Wardlaw was a granddaughter of William C Wardlaw & Lydia Heard -
her father was John Lewis Wardlaw. She obviously went to Greene County with her
parents in 1824. The moral: Young love does have a way to communicate - even under
difficult circumstances. As | understand the situation, Elizabeth left SC in 1824 and
John did not show up in Greene County to get married until 13 years later.

The Wardlaws lived near Donalds in Abbeville County, SC prior to emigrating to Greene
County in 1824. | believe this marriage indicates that Edmund Waller Stephens,
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Benjamin Waller Stephens, Zachary Logan (husband of Dorothy Stephens), and William
C Wardlaw families were neighbors in SC. It does not take much of a stretch to
conclude that the Hendersons and 1st wife of Benjamin Waller Stephens also lived
nearby. Now if we only had a census listing of all families who lived near Donalds, SC
in 1820 perhaps we could identify parents of William Franklin Henderson and mother of

Agness Robinson Stephens.

Tombstone - Jane L Griffin - Stephens Family Cemetery in Kenton County, KY
(Edmund Waller Stephens also buried here - no tombstone as of 2016)
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8.10 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents
(father/mother/father/father/mother)
Husband Marriage Wife

William C. 'Chunky Bill' Date: 1782 Lydia Heard

Wardlaw

DOB: 1762 Location: Abbeville DOB: 1770
County, SC

City/State: Augusta County, Va City/State: Old Cambridge

County, Va

Residence: 1782 - Abbeville Children Residence:

County, SC

Residence: 1824+ - Greene Margaret Only Wardlaw Residence:

County, AL (1798-1880)

Date of Death: 8Jun1840

Date of Death: 1824-1840

Cemetery: Wardlaw Family
Cemetery in Greene County, AL

Cemetery: Wardlaw Family
Cemetery in Greene County,

AL

City, State: Greene County, AL City, State: Greene County, AL
Father: Father:
John C Wardlaw John Heard
(1737-1791) (1744-1777)
Mother: Mother:
Margaret Ann Peggy Moore Lydia Logan
1737-1780) (1744-1777)

NOTES NOTES

William Wardlaw purchased 80 acres of land
in Greene County through the St Stephens
(AL) land office on 200ct1824. Location was:
* Township 22-N

* Range 2-E

* Section 12

Note: Wardlaw is spelled Wardlow in the
Greene County Patents Book which George
purchased. There are also erroneous family
trees on ancestry.com for "William Wardlow".

Facts indicate William Wardlaw and Lydia
Heard met and married in Abbeville County,
SCin 1782.

1) William & Mary had 7 children in SC, the
last being born in 1810.

2) Mary MAY have died in 1812 in SC She
could also have emigrated to Greene County
with her family in 1824.

3) William & several children emigrated to
Greene County, AL in 1824

4) William's will in 1840 makes no mention of
his wife

Interestingly, William C Wardlaw and
Benjamin Waller Stephens purchased
adjoining 80-acre homesteads about 3 miles
NE of Eutaw in 1824 and 1826. William's
1840 Will addresses construction of a 16-foot-
wide road between their two homesteads.

One version of William Wardlaw's will
indicates there was a 1-acre family 'burying
plot' on his property which he was designated
‘forever' as a protected cemetery. In Oct2016,
George was unable to find the Will or any
family cemetery.

William's 1840 Will was dated 11Feb1840 and
probated 8Jun1840. See Book B, page 245 of

George's Hypothesis: William's wife Mary did
not die in SC - she and William are both buried
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courthouse records for his Will.

There was a second William Wardlaw in
Greene County who wrote his Will in Dec1836
and it was probated on 12Jun1837. This Will
identifies wife Nancy as well as children
William L, Elizabeth, Mary, John D, Addison,
Lucinda, and Jane

in the family cemetery in Greene County.

Lydia (their daughter) and her husband
Theophilus Murphy died about the same time in
summer of 1840 and are also buried in the
Wardlaw Family Cemetery. Suspect that
William, Lydia, and Theophilus died of the
same cause (e.g., disease) in mid-1840.
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Descendants of William C Wardlaw and Lydia Heard

William Wardlaw married Lydia Heard (1770-1812) in 1782 in Abbeville County, SC

1.

Thomas H Wardlaw (1785-1829)

Thomas married Miranda Bumprass (1780-1829) on 8Jan1824 in Greene County,
AL

1) Martha B Wardlaw (1825-)

Zachariah Wardlaw (1785-1829)

Zachariah married Celia Ann Turner (1780-1828) on 8Dec1824 in Greene
County, AL

- No record of children

Joseph Wardlaw (22Nov1793-11Aprl1863)
Joseph married Mary Ann Niswanger (1799-1877) on 7Jan1819 in SC
1) Jacob Niswanger Wardlaw (1820-1905)
2) Mary Ann Wardlaw (1822-1893)

3) William Wardlaw (1824-1849)

4) Joseph Herd Wardlaw (1828-1896)

5) Pamela Wright Wardlaw (1830-)

6) James Asbury Wardlaw (1833-1866)

7) John Manly Wardlaw (1835-1844)

8) Martha Harriet Wardlaw (1837-1920)

9) Rowena Carr Wardlaw (1840-)

10)  Margaret Elizabeth Wardlaw (1842-1925)
11)  Andrew Jackson Wardlaw (1845-)

12)  Molly Wardlaw (1852-)

13)  William Wardlaw (1855-)

14)  Sophronia Wardlaw (1857-)

Margaret 'Peggy' Only Wardlaw (1794-1874)

Margaret married Benjamin Waller Stephens (1797-1850) in 1826 in SC
- migrated to Greene County, AL in 1827

1) Elizabeth Stephens (1827-1876)

2) James Zachariah Stephens (1828-1909)

3) Richard Stephens (1830-)

4) Dorothy Stephens (1832-)

5) Lydia Mariah Stephens (1834-1912)

6) Benjamin Waller Stephens (1837-)
Benjamin married Lydia Mariah Briggs (1834-1912)
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John Lewis Wardlaw (1798-1879)

John married Lucy Wright (1800-1882) in 1820 in Abbeville, SC
1) Elizabeth Susan Wardlaw (1821-1882)

2) Mary A Wardlaw (1823-1853)

3) Walter W Wardlaw (1824-1895)

4) Amanda Dulcina Wardlaw (1827-1905)

5) Little Berry Wardlaw (1828-1890)

6) Rebecca Wardlaw (1836-1864)

7) Louisa Wardlaw (1838-1926)

William M Wardlaw (1804-1837)

William married Nancy Douglas (1795-1866) in 1820 in Abbeville, SC

1) William Louis Wardlaw (1815-1862)

2) Elizabeth H Wardlaw (1821-1840) - received $500 from William
Wardlaw's will

3) Addison Wardlaw (1826-1891)

4) Lucinda Wardlaw (1827-1880)

5) Mary Wardlaw (1830-1910)

6) Jane Wardlaw (1833-1904)

7) John Douglas Wardlaw (1835-1899)

Elizabeth 'Eliza’ Amanda Wardlaw (1810-1862)

Elizabeth married Richard H Turner (1800-1836) on 19Jan1825 in Greene
County, AL

1) James Robert Turner (-)

2) Mary Ann Turner (-)

3) Susan Elizabeth Turner (1829-1912)

4) Julia Ann Turner (1832-)

5) Edna Jane Turner (1834-)

Elizabeth married David Craig Russell (1802-1853) in ~1838
1) David Russell (1839-1892)

2) Thomas Wardlaw Russell (1845-1876)

Elizabeth married Richard M Owen (-)

Lydia Wardlaw (1812-1850)

Lydia married Theophilous B Murphy (1800- ) in Greene County on 18Mar1835
- Couple were married by Thomas Wolstenholme, JP

(Lydia received Wardlaw family Bible per William Wardlaw's 1840 Will)
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1) Unknown Murphy (1835-) - died before 1840

2) Carolyn Murphy (1836-1912) - received $500 from William Wardlaw's
will

3) Elizabeth Murphy (1840-)

Note: Family lore says that Lydia and Theophilous were 'lost' while 'on their way to
Texas. There two orphan daughters were raised by their maternal grandparents Benjamin
and Margaret Stephens. Interestingly, Theophilous was named executor of William
Wardlaw's Will which was signed in early 1840 and William died in June 1840. George
suspects the Lydia, Theophilous, and William all died of the same cause (e.g. disease) in
the summer of 1840. Further, the three of them (as well as William's wife Mary) may be
buried in the Wardlaw Family Cemetery (if it exists) located on their homestead located
about 3 miles NE of Eutaw, AL.

Note: The version of William Wardlaw's Will as transcribed in the Stephens Family
book published by Judge Laurie Paul Stephens includes a sentence which indicates that
William was setting aside a 1-acre plot for the family cemetery. If so, this plot
designation should appear on deed to the original Wardlaw family farm - the deed should
be in the Greene County courthouse in Eutaw, AL. In October 2016, George visited the
Eutaw Courthouse but was unable to find any Will for William C Wardlaw. However,
George did identify exact location of William's homestead (about 3 miles NE of Eutaw),
visited the site, and talked with two different people who live on the original Wardlaw
homestead. Neither individual was aware of any family cemetery in the vicinity.

11 Feb 1840/10 Aug 1840 Greene Co AL WILLIAM C. WARDLAW will

Know all men by these presents that I, WILLIAM C. WARDLAW, being of sound mind
and disposing memory and mindful of my mortality, do hereby declare and publish the
following as my last will and testament.

Whereas | have already had my tract of land whereon | now live advertised for sale
consisting of 120 acres, now if it should please God that | should die before the day of
sale, it is my wish and will that my executor should proceed to sell according to the terms
of said advertisement all of my land, and other things now advertised for sale, and in case
anything should happen that the sale is not made at that time I direct my Executor to sell
as soon thereafter as convenient upon the same credits - and after my death | direct that
all the balance of my property be sold by my executor, and out of the proceeds of both
real and personal property | bequeath and give unto my granddaughter BETSEY H.
WARDLAW the sum of five hundred dollars, unto my grand-daughter CAROLINE
MURPHEY five hundred dollars, unto my daughter LYDIA MURPHEY five hundred
dollars, unto my daughters MILINDA ROMAN and ELIZABETH formerly
ELIZABETH TURNER five dollars each. The balance of the money after paying the
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above legacees to be equally divided among my children JOHN L. WARDLAW,
THOMAS H. WARDLAW, ZACHRY WARDLAW, ISAAC WARDLAW, PEGGY
UNDLY STEPHENS, LYDIA MURPHY and my grand children, the heirs of WILLIAM
M. WARDLAW and RICHARD TURNER Deceased. | mean hereby my grand children,
the children of WILLIAM M. WARDLAW and RICHARD TURNER alone. The
aforesaid legacees are to be paid after my executor shall have first paid all my just debts.

| think proper here to state that one half hogs and cattle I now have on hand belongs to
my son ISAAC WARDLAW. | do not wish my family Bible sold. | give that to my
daughter LYDIA. | reserve from sale of my land a sufficiency of ground for a road
sixteen feet wide leading out from Benson in W. Stephen south, as agreed upon by
myself and said STEPHENS.

| do hereby constitute and appoint THEOPHILUS B. MURPHY my Executor to carry
this my last will and testament into effect. The word "advertised' interlined before signing.

Signed and sealed the 11th day of February in the year 1840.
In presence of THOMAS RIDDLE, ROBERT BURNES, WILLIAM PATTON.

8 Jun 1840 Greene Co AL, Orphans Court The will of WILLIAM WARDLAW having
been presented to the court by THEOPHILUS B. MURPHY the executor and proof of its
due execution having been made by ROBERT BURNES, it is ordered that the further
proof thereof be continued till next term of this court to be held the 2nd Monday of July
next and that subpoenas issue to THOMAS RIDDLE and WILLIAM PATTON to attend
at said term court to prove the same.

10 Aug 1840 Greene Co AL Orphans Court This day the Last Will and Testament of
WILLIAM C. WARDLAW was again presented to the court for probate whereupon the
court proceeded to examine on oath THOMAS RIDDLE one of the subscribing witnesses
thereto touching the legal execution of said Will and the court being fully satisfied from
his testimony in addition with the former testimony it is ordered by the court that said
will be received, established and recorded. Attest A. R. DAVIS, Clerk.

Note: William's will identifies 'Isaac Wardlaw' as his son. Unfortunately, researchers
have really botched this one. Since Isaac is mentioned in the 1840 will, he must have
been alive at that point in time - probably in Greene County, AL. Thus far, George has
been unable to identify this 'Isaac'.

Both Theophilous & Lydia (nee Wardlaw) Murphy died before 1850 - apparently near
time William died in June 1840. Per 1850 census, both Caroline Murphy and her sister
Elizabeth Murphy were living with Benjamin & Margaret Stephens. Per Ruth Kendal,
Theophilous was unable to complete his probate duties and someone else had to be
appointed. Allegedly, Theophilous and Lydia Murphy disappeared from history "on the
way to Texas". However, both daughters went to live with their grandparents Benjamin
& Margaret Stephens. George suspects that some sort of disease struck the family in
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1839-1840 during which both William and Lydia died (and are buried in Greene County)
as well as Theophilous and Lydia died in Greene County rather than 'going to Texas'.

George believes he has found proof that several of the Henderson-related
families were neighbors both in SC and in Greene County during the
early 1800s.

George's reasoning for this was a marriage between Elizabeth Susan Wardlaw (1821-
1882) and John Franklin Stephens (1813-1884) which occurred in Greene County on
15Dec1837. The couple spent their married lives in Kenton County, KY and are buried
there.

John Franklin Stephens was a son of Edmund Waller Stephens and Jane Griffen -
presumably he went with them from SC to Kenton County, KY in 1829. Otherwise, he
went to Greene County in 1824 (or 1827) where he married in 1837 and then decided to
move to Kenton County, KY. In either case, there must have been communication
between the Stephens & Wardlaw families in KY and those in Greene County - at least
between 1824 and 1837.

Elizabeth Susan Wardlaw was a granddaughter of William C Wardlaw & Lydia Heard -
her father was John Lewis Wardlaw. She obviously went to Greene County with her
parents in 1824. As | read this, Elizabeth left SC in 1824 and John did not show up in
Greene County to get married until 13 years later.

The Wardlaws lived near Long Cane northeast of Abbeville in Abbeville County, SC
prior to emigrating to Greene County in 1824. 1 believe this marriage indicates that
Edmund Waller Stephens, Benjamin Waller Stephens, Zachary Logan (husband of
Dorothy Stephens), and William C Wardlaw families were neighbors in SC. It does not
take much of a stretch to conclude that the Hendersons and 1st wife of Benjamin Waller
Stephens also lived nearby. Now if we had a census listing of all families who lived in
Abbeville County, SC in 1820 perhaps we could identify parents of William Franklin
Henderson and mother of Agness Robinson Stephens.

Following is a summary of George's analysis regarding a ""Wardlaw
Family Cemetery' in Greene County, AL.

George reviewed copy of William C Wardlaw's Feb1840 Will which was reprinted in the
Stephens family book In this version, the will has one extra sentence: "I reserve from
sale of my land forever one acre where the burying ground now is." Neither version of
the will is the original but I am willing to accept that there was likely a "Wardlaw Family
Cemetery". Incidentally, that 1-acre plot is likely still showing on property deed which
should be available there at the courthouse in Eutaw. In October 2016, George was
unable to locate the original deed to the Wardlaw property but the Tax Assessor's Office

Generation 8
Page 8- 33



in Eutaw, Alabama does NOT have any indication that there is a family cemetery located
on this property.

Following is summary of my experience in finding old family burial plots here in
Nashville area: Given a 1-acre plot, the Wardlaw family cemetery would likely be 210'
x 210" with some sort of surrounding fence or wall. 1t will likely be located on a hillside
or perhaps just on the edge of hilltop - probably within 200 yards of the family home. In
the early 1800s, the family home would have been located ‘down the hill' close to the
water supply (probably a creek) while the gravesites were located high enough on the
hillside to be beyond any future flooding. If any structure still exists it might still be
visible on a google satellite image. Thus far, George has been unable to locate any actual
evidence of such a family burial site.

George reviewed the will of Rev William Robinson (1708-1792) - he spelled his wife's
name as "Agness Smith". To me, this provides proof of my earlier assertion that Agness
Smith is the GGrandmother of Agness Robinson Stephens (1818-1873) who married
William Franklin Henderson.

Incidentally, Theophilus B Murphy did not purchase any land patent in Greene County -
but he was named executor of William's Will in 1840. Presumably, he was a poor boy
(allegedly from Massachusetts) who married Lydia and they had two girls Caroline
(1837) and Elizabeth (1840). Since William C Wardlaw named Theophilus and Lydia in
his will dated 11Feb1840, they both must have been living nearby. However, William
died 8Jun1840 and Ruth Kendall said the probate court had to name someone else to be
the executor. My suspicion is that a catastrophe happened to Theophilus & Lydia in the
summer 0f1840 with both of them being buried in the family homestead and the two
orphan girls going to live with Benjamin & Margaret Stephens (i.e., their grandparents).
It seems unlikely that William would have named Theophilous as his executor in Feb
1840 if they were planning on moving to Texas in the immediate future.

Finally, my suspicion is that William's wife Lydia (rather than dying in 1812) made the
trek with the family from SC to Greene County in 1824. If so, she is likely buried in the
family plot. There is no evidence | know of that Lydia died in 1812 - that is a confusion
researchers have made with a Lydia Wardlaw who died in Elbert, Georgia in 1812 - that
Lydia may have been the Governor's. wife.
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8.11 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents
(father/mother/father/mother/father)
Husband Marriage Wife
Elkanah (Eland) Briggs Date: 1799 Elizabeth Ann Harris
DOB: 1766 Location: Georgia DOB: 1768
City/State: Massachusetts City/State: Granville County,
NC
Residence: 1799 - Warren Children Residence:
County, Ga
Residence: 1825 - Covington Michael "Micah" Briggs Residence:
County, AL (1808-1870)
Residence: ? - Conecuh County, Residence:
AL
Residence: 1840 - Butler Residence:
County, AL
Date of Death: 21Apr1875 Date of Death: 1840
Cemetery: Cemetery:
City, State: Butler County, AL City, State: Butler County, AL
Father: Father:
James Briggs, Jr John Harris
(1725-1769) (1750-1773)
b: Virginia
d: Granville County, NC
Mother: Mother:
Agnes Dell
(1730-1803)
- died in Ontario, Canada
NOTES NOTES

Elkanah purchased 80 acre land patent in
Covington County, AL on 15Sep1825. See
location T5, R14.

The Sherwood Harris Jr family (i.e., John
Harris' father) moved from Goochland County,
VA to Granville County, NC sometime prior to
1766.

Elkanah purchased 40 acre land patent in
Crenshaw County, AL on 2Aug1837

DNA records shows that Sherwood Harris Sr of
Granville County, NC was Elizabeth's
grandfather.

Elkanah made two purchases of land patents in
Crenshaw County, AL - 80 acres on
15Aug1837 and 160 acres on 28Jul1838.

13Mar1793-31Dec1793 - Elkanah was
discharged as a private in Captain Randolph's
Troop of Dragoons, Georgia Militia from
Camden County, GA

Elkanah was also known as "Eleand" or
'Elkanna’

Per 1850 census, Elkanah was a blacksmith in
Butler County, AL

DNA evidence proves that Elkanah Briggs
descends from the immigrant of Clement
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Briggs of Massachusetts. Either Elkanah or his
father's family emigrated from Massachusetts
to Georgia sometime prior to 1693 - when
Elkanah joined the Georgia Militia.

George's Hypothesis (as yet unproven): Elkanah Briggs was born in Massachusetts.
Elkanah's family emigrated south and ended up in Camden County, GA sometime prior
to 1793. The Briggs and Harris family were neighbors in Camden County, GA and,
perhaps earlier, in Massachusetts. Elkanah joined the Georgia militia in Camden
County, GA - he was 27 years of age when he was discharged from the militia. While in
the militia, Elkanah met Elizabeth Harris (whose family was living nearby in Camden
County, GA) and they were married less than one year after Elkanah was discharged
from the Georgia militia. Elkanah and Elizabeth lived in Georgia until sometime after
1816 when Elkanah and Elizabeth relocated their family to Crenshaw County, AL.
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Descendants of Elkanah (Eland) Briggs and Elizabeth Ann Harris

Elkanah (Eland) Briggs (1766-1855) married Elizabeth Harris (1768-1840) in 1794 in

Georgia

Elkanah likely met Elizabeth in 1793 when he was a soldier with the Georgia
militia

Elkanah and Elizabeth settled in Georgia - except for Willis each of their
children was born here

1. Willis Briggs (1795-Jul1860) - born in SC, died in Montgomery, AL
Willis married Nancy Brewer (1795-)

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)

William E Briggs (1831-1908)
Syrena Briggs (1832-)

Henry Briggs (1834-)

Pheobe Ann Briggs (1836-)

Leroy Briggs (1839-)

Mary Elizabeth Briggs (1843-1929)

2. Simeon Briggs (1800-1860) - born in GA; died in Hempstead, ARK
Simeon married Sarah Elizabeth Jones (1803-1870) - b: Darlington County, SC

1)
2)
3)
4)

5)

Elizabeth Briggs (1830-)

Dicey Briggs (1835-1872)

James Briggs (1837-)

John Julian Briggs (4Jul1839-3Apr1919)-b:Pike County, AL,
d:Hunt County, TX

John married Mary Susan Abel (8Ju1843-24Nov1921) on 8Jun1843 in
Hempstead County, ARK

1- Sarah Elizabeth Briggs (13May1861-Jun1891)

2- Dicey 'Dilly Matilda Briggs (23Jun1864-4Dec1904)
3- Martin Simeon (11Jaun1867-12May1949)

4- John Randolph Briggs (21Mar1869-21Feb1945)

5- Mary Surilda Briggs (Mar1871-11Jun1912)

6- William Andrew Briggs (25Aug1873-7Jul1937)

7- Thomas Michael Briggs (2Feb1875-28Feb1959)

8- Martha Eilla Briggs (12Dec1877-27Jul1961)

9- Charles Eugene Briggs (3Mar1879-)

10-  George Green Griggs (17Sep1881-4Jun1959)
Michael Briggs (1845-)

3. Matilda Emeline Briggs (1800-1850)
Matilda married John Matthews (1795-1850) on 25Apr1820 in Jones, GA
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1) Jones Coffee 'Caffy’ Matthews (1820-1861)
2) Martha Matilda Matthews (1832-1883)
3) Sara Matthews (1834-1852)

Nelson Briggs (22Feb1803-6Apr1879) - died in Meridian, MS
Nelson married Elizabeth Carr (1835-1911)

1) Alley Briggs (1854-)

2) David N Briggs (1859-)

3) Benjamin Briggs (1862-)

4) Cardelia Briggs (1865-)

5) Nancy Jane Briggs (1870-)

6) Virginia Briggs (1873-1958)

7) Simeon Singleton Briggs (1877-)

Elijah Nelson Briggs (22Feb1803-6Aprl1879) - died in Meridian, MS
Elijah married ??

1) James Briggs (1844-)

2) Alley Briggs (1854-)

Elijah married Elizabeth E Carr (1835-1910) on 21Jan1859 in Clark, MS
1) David Nelson Briggs (1860-1934)

2) Benjamin Franklin Briggs (1862-1934)

3) Margaret Cardelia Briggs (1864-)

4) Nancy Jane Briggs (1869-1932)

5) Virginia D Briggs (1874-)

6) Simeon Singleton Briggs (1877-1974)

Michael "Micah" Briggs (1808-1870) - died in Hughes Springs, Cass County, TX
married Sarah Elizabeth Williamson (1811-1866)
1) Lydia Maria Briggs (1834-1912)

Lydia married James Benjamin Stephens, Sr (1837-1865)

Thomas Howard Briggs (1810-15Dec1861) - died in Crenshaw County, AL
Thomas married Ann Kent (1814-1897)

1) Lydia T Briggs (1834-1918)

2) Sarah Briggs (1835-)

3) Elizabeth Briggs (1838-)

4) Nancy Margaret Briggs (1839-1922)

5) Levy Elkanah Briggs (1841-)

6) Amarintha Briggs (1846-)

7) Anna Briggs (1849-)
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Jacob Briggs (1815-28Jul1887) - died in St Clair County, AL
married Celebe A Duck (1820-1895) on 24Dec1833 in Montgomery, AL

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)
9)

Sarah Briggs (1836-1897)

Nancy M Briggs (1836-1897)

James M Briggs (1838-)

Nancy M Briggs Smith (1847-1904)
Henry Briggs (1850-1932)

Cally A Briggs (1854-1927)

Mary Ann Charlotte Briggs (1854-1927)
Televi L Briggs (1858-)

Easter Ann Rebecca Briggs (1858-)

Brinson Briggs (1816-)
- No record of marriage
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8.12 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(father/mother/father/mother/mother)

Husband Marriage Wife
Jason Williamson Date: 1810 Sarah Jones
DOB: 1775 Location: Darlington DOB: 1792
County, SC
City/State: Darlington County, City/State: Laurens County,
SC SC
Residence: 1820 - Darlington Children Residence:
County, SC
Residence: 1825 - Butler, Sarah Elizabeth Residence: 1830+ - Butler,
Covington County, AL Williamson Covington County, AL
(1811-1886)
married

Michael Micah Briggs
(1808-1870)

Date of Death: 1829

Date of Death: 1830

Cemetery:

Cemetery:

City, State: Covington County,
AL

City, State: Covington County,
AL

Father: Father:
James Williamson
(1750-4Feb1796)
Mother: Mother:
Sarah Bryan
(1751-1800)

NOTES NOTES

Sarah appears in Covington County, AL in the
1830 Federal Census living near Simeon Briggs
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Descendants of Jason Williamson and Sarah Jones

Jason Williamson (1775-1829) and Sarah Jones (1792-1830) were married in 1810 in
Darlington County, SC

1.

Sarah Elizabeth Williamson (1811-1886)
- born in Darlington County, SC; died in Hughes Springs, Cass County, Tx
married Michael Micah Briggs (1808-1870) in 1810 in Darlington County, SC

1)
2)
3)

4)
5)
6)
7)
8)
9
10)
11)

Thomas Howard Briggs (1831-1905)
Elkanah Briggs (1834-)

Lydia Maria Briggs (1834-1912)

Lydia married James Benjamin Stephens, Sr (1837-1865)
Nancy Elizabeth Briggs (1838-1907)
Sarah Ann Matilda Briggs (1838-1906)
Susan Pernica Briggs (1840-1883)
Martha Adeline Briggs (1842-1895)
Mary E Briggs (1844-)

John Baptist Briggs (1851-1940)

Julia Anne Briggs (1852-1883)

James Briggs (1852-1861)
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8.13 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGrandparents

(father/mother/mother/father/father)

Husband

Marriage

Wife

David Drummond Sr

Date: 27Nov1787

Nancy Ann Johnson

DOB: 1765

Location: Mecklenburg
County, Va

DOB: 18Nov1765

City/State: Lunenburg,

City/State: Louisa, Louisa

Mecklenburg County, Va County, Va

Residence: 1790+ - Children Residence:

Spartanburg, Spartanburg

County, SC

Residence: Thomas James Drummond | Residence:
(1800-1870)

Residence Residence:

Date of Death: 1830

Date of Death: 25Mar1856

Cemetery:

Cemetery:

City, State: Spartanburg,
Spartanburg County, SC

City, State: Spartanburg,
Spartanburg County, SC

Father:
Aaron Drummond I
(1735-1787)

Father:
Lt James Johnson, Sr
(1740-1794)

Mother:
Elizabeth Todd
(1734-1788)

Mother:

Elizabeth Susannah Sukey
Gerrard

(1741-1790)

NOTES

NOTES

Per Virginia's Navy of the Revolution, David
Drummond was crew member aboard the
Safequard Galley 1Mar1777-15Junl777,

LBNB, Decl5,1778.

David served as a private Jan1778-1783 in
Virginia's Regiment 9 - per U.S. Revolutionary

War Rolls, 1775-1783.

Numerous researchers indicate him as David
Drummond, Sr - if so, then David Drummond,
Jr was born in 1785 in VA about two years
before David Drummond and Nancy Ann
Johnson were married. Such a David, Jr would
have been an illegitimate child of David &
Nancy or David, Sr was married to wife #1
who died giving birth to David, Jr in 1785.

David Drummond & Nancy Ann Johnson
migrated from Va to Spartanburg County, SC
shortly after they were married in 1787.
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1.

Descendants of David Drummond, Sr and Nancy Ann Johnson

David Drummond Jr (1785-)

Some researchers have identified David Jr as being the son of David

Drummond (1765-1830). If true, David was either married to wife #1 prior to
marrying Nancy in 1787 or David Jr was an illegitimate birth. Thus far, George
has been unable to find sufficient proof to support either situation.

David Drummond married Nancy Ann Johnson (1765-1856) on 27Nov1787

1.

Alston Drummond (1789- )

Alston married Lucinda Mary Drummond(?) (1801-)
1) Eliza Drummond (1827-)

2) Caroline Drummond (1832-)

3) Mattison ‘Madison' Drummond (1835-)
4) Adeline Drummond (1837-)

5) Pinkney Drummond (1839-)

6) Rosa Drummond (1841-)

7) Julia Drummond (1843-)

8) Louisa Drummond (1846-)

9) Anna Drummond (1848-)

Alston Drummond. According to the Bastardy Processes of Spartanburg
County, Alston Drummond was the father of an illegitimate daughter born
on June 1, 1821 to Martha Johnson, a single woman. A bond was signed
by Alston Drummond, T. J. Drummond and John Johnson before E.
Bomar, J.Q. This information was obtained from the publication "Upper
South Carolina Genealogy & History" dated March 1991, published by the
Piedmont Historical Society, Volume VIII, No. 1. page 10. This compiler
does not know the name of this child.

(2nd Lt) Thomas James Drummond (8Sep1800-23Jun1870)

Thomas married Isabel Margaret Legg (1805-1875)

1) Jina Annberry Drummond (1825-1898)

2) John A Drummond (1827-1855)

3) Nancy Jane Drummond (1829-1898)

4) Pvt David Thomas Drummond (1831-1898)
David married Mary Francis Mayes (1841-1912)

5) Mahala F Drummond (1834-1885)

6) Martha Elizabeth Drummond (1836-1873)

7) Pvt George W Drummond (1837-1863)

8) Harriet Ruth Drummond (1843-1918)

9) Pvt Warren H Drummond (1844-1864)
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Nancy Drummond (1803-1890)
Nancy married Robert Fisher Brown (1804-1877) on 13Nov1827
1) Jeremiah 'Jerry' Brown (1829-)
2) Harriet L Brown (1830-1888)
3) Welles Willis Brown (1832-)
4) William Brown (1838-)

5) Mary Brown (1839-)

6) Germany Brown (1841-)

7) Elizabeth Brown (1843-)

8) Jane Brown (1845-)

Nancy married Jacob Harden (-)

Cassey Drummond (1807- )
- No record of marriage

John Drummond (1809-23Jun1870)
- No record of marriage

William Drummond (1809- )

William married Frances Caroline Anderson (1813-) in 1832
1) William H Drummond (1828-1863)
2) Eliza Drummond (1832-)

3) Sarah Drummond (1834-)

4) Laura Drummond (1836-)

5) Susan C Drummond (1839-)

6) Zepha Drummond (1840-1882)

7) Sarah A Drummond (1843-)

8) Joseph Arnie Drummond (1847-)
9) Ben Drummond (1849-)

10)  Martha Drummond (1850-)

11)  Jane R Drummond (1854-)

Pinkney Gramlin Drummond (1813-Sep1887)

Pinkney married Elizabeth W ?? (1820-) in ~1835 in SC
1) Sarah R Drummond (1835-)

2) Julian Drummond (1841-)

3) Samuel H Drummond (1843-)

4) Amanda L Drummond (1845-)

5) Nancy R Drummond (1847-)

6) Frances Drummond (1849-)

Generation 8
Page 8- 44



Notes from published Descendants of James Johnson, Sr

Nancy Johnson, (Jamesl) b. ca. 1766 in perhaps Mecklenburg County, Virginia, d. in
Spartanburg County, South Carolina. Nancy Johnson, who married after her father died,
was under age for marriage, and it is recorded in Mecklenburg Co., Va., that consent
was give by her brother, James Johnson, Jr., and Howell Johnson was a witness to her
marriage to David Drummond. She married David Drummond, Sr., b. ABT 1765 in
Mecklenburg Co., North Carolina., d. 1830/1840 in Spartanburg County, South
Carolina.

David Drummond Sr: David was a son of Aaron Drummond Jr and Elizabeth Todd.
David was a brother to Ephriam Drummond, who settled near Woodruff, SC., and is
buried at Bethel Cemetery, Woodruff, SC.

David Drummond Sr apparently settled in the Ben's Creek Community, Spartanburg
County where there was a community called ‘Drummondville’ in the vicinity of Reidville.
David Drummond Sr was a lay minister who was attending Sharon's Methodist Church in
Reidville Towshship, Spartanburg County, South Carolina.

David Drummond Sr must have been something of a "character” as he Is mentioned in
some of the articles written by William Roy, whose articles concerning the Ben's Creek
Community appeared in the Carolina Spartan newspapers between May 20, 1891 to
December 20, 1893. In one article he wrote, "Sharon Church was honored with the
never-failing attendance of David Drummond, a member of Foster's Church, which was
in a declining condition, and he turned his whole energy to the support of the gospel at
Sharon. He was perhaps known further by the reputation than any other lay member of
the church on this continent. It would take a volume to related his sayings and
eccentricities. Few of the preacher's utterances but what he responded to with "Amen",
in a thundering voice. | want to correct an error that | saw in newspapers with regard to
the use of the word Amen. The paper stated that when David was In a Presbyterian
meeting he wished to respond to the sentences of the preacher that he approved, but was
not certain that the rules that church would allow him to respond and at last he is said to
have shouted, "Amen, rough a venture. " I have heard him use that word with power in
his own church. | mean the rough at a venture part of it, but never in the Presbyterian
Church. When | heard him annex the phrase "rough at a venture" to the word "Amen", it
was next time he had been to hear preaching after he had stood a trial In his church for
Improperly using the word Amen. The sentence that he is charged, read something in
this we': "~he power and kingdom of the Devil was established on earth™ and he was
charged with shouting Amen to that sentence. Tourists, Yankee pedlers and Kentuckians,
in passing through the country, selected camp meeting time to see Mr. Drummond and
hear his utterances. He was on the greatest scripturalists in the world. He had texts of
scripture at hand to encourage every sentiment in favor of virtue. At the same time he
was able to hurl anthema Neatest voice, citing book and chapter to prove his point.

Generation 8
Page 8- 45



David Drummond Sr (1765-1830) as a young boy (c1775)

Note: George has been unable to find burial location or tombstone photo for either David
Drummond or Nancy Johnson.
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8.14

(father/mother/mother/father/mother)

Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

Husband Marriage Wife
Thomas J Legg Date: 24 Jan 1800 Jeanetta Nully
DOB: 1775 Location: Farquier DOB: 1780
County, Va

City/State: Monroe, Prince City/State: Richmond, Wise
William County, Va County, Va
Residence: 1805 - Prince Children Residence:
William County, Va
Residence: ~1807 - Isabel Margaret Legg Residence:
Spartanburg County, SC (1805-1875)
Residence: 1827+ - Greene Residence:
County, AL
Date of Death: 18Apr1854 Date of Death: 12Aug1839
(Easter Sunday)
Cemetery: Beulah Baptist Cemetery: Beulah Baptist
Church Cemetery Church Cemetery
City, State: Greene County, AL City, State: Greene County, AL
Father: Father:
Captain James Ambrose Legg
(1754-1822)
- d: Prince William County, Va
Mother: Mother:
Elizabeth Hughes
(1758-1830)
- d: Monroe, Amherst County,
Va

NOTES NOTES

Thomas was a veteran of the War of 1812
(28Aug1814). He was a private in 57
Regiment Virginia Militia.

George's analysis suggests (but cannot prove)
that both Thomas and Jeanette were buried in
the Beulah Baptist Church Cemetery because
that is where their daughter Isabel (1805-1875)
is buried. David Drummond (their son-in-law)
was a charter member of Beulah.

Thomas did not purchase a land patent in
Greene County, AL. Apparently, Thomas &
Isabel lived in/near Eutaw, AL. No info on
what how he made his livelihood.

Thomas & Jeanetta emigrated from VA to
Spartanburg, SC in ~1807. Adeline (1806-)
was born in Va while Mary (1808-) was born
in SC.

Thomas James Drummond & Isabel Margaret
Legg emigrated from Spartanburg, SC to
Greene County, AL in 1827 with a caravan of
Irish immigrants. George assumes that
Thomas & Jeanetta Legg (Isabel parents) were
part of that same caravan .
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Descendants of Thomas J Legg and Jeanetta Nully

Thomas Legg (1775-1854) and Jeanetta Nully (1780-1839) were married 24 Jan 1800 in
Prince William County, Va

1.

Thomas Nutter Legg (1799-1879)

Thomas married Elizabeth Nutter (1790-1869)
1) Jane Legg (1812-1889)

2) Ruth Legg (1815-1877)

3) Thomas Legg (1817-)

4) Fanny Legg (1818-1885)

5) Jonathan Burdette Legg (1825-1895)
6) Edmond P Legg (1829-1880)

7) Elizabeth Matilda Legg (1830-1900)
8) Samuel Andrew Legg (1833-1901)

Josephine Rhianna Legg (1803-1864) - born in Va

Josephine married Rev Matther Pickett Smith (1805-1883)
- adoptive parent of Elijah Sellers

1) Josephus Smith (1825-1864)

2) Mary Ann Smith (1825-1900)

3) James Thomas Smith (1827-1892)

4) Elizabeth Jane Smith (1832-1889)

5) George Washington Smith (1834-1834)

6) Adeline Rebecca Smith (1835-1908)

7) Hasseltine Smith (1839-1871)

Isabel Margaret Legg (1805-1875) - born in Va; died in Greene County, AL
Isabel married Thomas James Drummond (1800-1870) in SC in 1825
1) David Thomas Drummond (1831-1898)

David married Mary Frances Mayes (1841-1912)

Adeline Knight Legg (1806-) - born in Va
Adeline married William Jasper Porter (1830-1918)
1) William R Porter (1861-1885)

Mary Legg (1808-1880) - born in Spartanburg, SC
Mary married George Story (1799-1870)
1) Thomas Alexander Zandeer Story (1831-1931)
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2) Fortunatus N Story (1833-1933)
3) John Addison Story (1837-1910)
4) Amanda J Story (1841-1907)
5) Martha F Story (1845-1930)
6) Georgia Ann Story (1847-1932)

Frances Legg (1811-1836) - born in Spartanburg, SC; died in Greene County,
AL

Frances married Manley Knight (-)

1) Mary Ann Knight (1834-1914)

2) Unk
3) Unk
4) Unk

Mahala Legg (1815-) - born in Spartanburg, SC
- No record of marriage

Henrietta Legg (1818-1870) - born in Spartanburg, SC
Henrietta married Latham R Moore (-1870)
- No record of children

Patsey Legg (1820-) - born in Spartanburg, SC
- No record of marriage

Polly Legg (1822-) - born in Spartanburg, SC
- No record of marriage
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8.15 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(father/mother/mother/mother/father)

Husband Marriage Wife
Edward Mayes Date: Nancy A Archibald
DOB: 1772 Location: SC DOB: 1786
City/State: Jonesville, Union City/State: Iredell County, NC
County, SC
Residence: 1800-1830 - Union Children Residence:
District, SC
Residence: 1830+ - Greene Samuel James Mayes Residence:

County, AL

(1823-1842)

Date of Death: 25Jul1848

Date of Death: 1845

Cemetery: Hebron Cemetery,
Greene County, AL

Cemetery: Hebron Cemetery,
Greene County, AL

City, State: Mount Hebron,
Union, Greene County, AL

City, State: Union, Greene
County, AL

Father:
James Mayes
(1729-1818)

Father:
Thomas Archibald
(1738-1800)

Mother: Mother:

Jane McElwain Martha Edmund

(1746-1824) (1740-1782)
NOTES NOTES

Edward Mayes made 7 land purchases in

Greene County between 1830 and 1838 for a
total of 480 acres. Apparently, the Edward
Mayes family emigrated from SC to Greene

County, AL in 1830.

Apparently, the Thomas Archibald family
(including Nancy Archibald) emigrated from
NC to Spartanburg, SC sometime prior to 1805.
Research indicates the couple married in SC in
1806.
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Descendants of Edward Mayes and Nancy A Archibald

Edward Mayes married Nancy A Archibald (1786-1845) in 1806

1. Samuel James Mayes (1809-1890) - born & died in Union County, SC
Samuel married Barbara Elizabeth Black (1813-1896) on 17Jul1834
1) Susan Elizabeth Mayes (1839-1915)

2) Almarine Mayes (1840-1857)

3) Samuel Scott Mayes (1842-1862)

4) Rebecca Almarine Mayes (1844-1861)
5) Amanda Theodocia Mayes (1845-1865)
6) Daniel Wallace Mayes (1847-1939)

7) Joseph Black Mayes (1848-1849)

8) Mary McDowell Mayes (1854-1935)

9) David Henry Mayes (1855-1858)

2. Elizabeth M Mayes (1812-1870)
Elizabeth married Wallace Alexander (1801-) on 29Dec1830
1) Nancy A Alexander (1832-)

2) Joseph E Alexander (1836-)

3) Margaret J Alexander (1838-)

4) Mary Alexander (1840-)

5) William Harrel Alexander (1843-)
6) Samuel J Alexander (1844-)

7) Martha Alexander (1846-)

8) Marcena Alexander (1848-)

9) Sarah Alexander (1850-)

3. Jane L Lilas Mayes (1814-May1880)
Jane married Joseph Henry Templeton (1812-1855) on 310ct1831
1) Elizabeth Jane Templeton (1833-1909)
2) John H Templeton (1834-1862)
3) Samuel Richard Templeton (1841-1911)
4) Mary Isabella Templeton (1841-1910)
5) Andrew Jackson Templeton (1849-1931)

4. William Andrew Mayes (60ct1821-17Jan1870)
William married Mary Amanda White (1829-1869) on 60ct1845
1) Robert Edward Mayes (1846-1846)
2) Mary Adella Mayes (1847-1930)
3) Eola Mayes (1849-)
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4) Christina Lilas Mayes (1850-1889)

5) George Steele Mayes (1852-1852)

6) Martha Jane Mayes (1853-1922)

7) Charles Pierson Mayes (1856-1935)
8) Andrew Sylvester Mayes (1858-1918)
9) Neanian LaFayette Mayes (1860-1928)
10)  Elizabeth Beatrice Mayes (1861-1935)
11)  Annie Lee Mayes (1864-1946)

12)  Sterling Price Mayes (1864-1949)

13)  William Walter Mayes (1867-1920)
14)  Laura Amanda Mayes (1869-1869)

Samuel J Mayes (1823-1842) - born & died in Greene County, AL
(Note the duplication of name with his oldest brother who stayed in SC)
Samuel married Sarah Caroline Lamb (1819-1884) on 10Jul1840
1) Mary Francis Mayes (1841-1912)

Mary married David Thomas Drummond (1831-1898)

Eleanor Amanda Mayes (1824-1863)

Eleanor married Elijah Martin Alexander (1820-1865) on 18Nov1843
1) Mattie Alexander (1844-)

2) Roz Alexander (1846-)

3) Smith Alexander (1848-)

4) Gaynor Alexander (1850-)

5) William Alexander (1852-1918)

Margaret Jane Mayes (1825- )
Margaret married William Foster (1823-)
- No record of children

Andrew Gaston George Mayes (1828-17Jan1870) - born in Greene County, AL
- No record of marriage

Mary Ann Mayes (1828- ) - born in Greene County, AL
Mary married Benjamin Carter (1826-) on 13Sep1848
- No record of children
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Siblings of Edward Mayes (1772-1848)
1) James Mayes (1773-1841)

2) Anthony Mayes (1782-1848)

3) Joseph Mayes (1784-1843)

Greene County Land Purchases by Edward Mayes

Year Acres Location Land Office
1) 1830 80 23-N, 2-E, Sec9 Tuscaloosa
2) 1837 40 23-N, 2-E, Sec5 Tuscaloosa
3) 1838 40 23-N, 2-E, Sec5 Tuscaloosa
3) 1839 120 21-S, 12-W, Sec7 Tuscaloosa

Edward Mayes (and later his widow Nancy Archibald) wrote and probated wills each of
which were extreme in length. The couple had to be extremely wealthy because of the
large number of specific endowments which they named in their wills. Edward's will was
26 pages in length while Nancy's will was 39 pages in length.
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8.16 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(father/mother/mother/mother/mother)

Husband Marriage Wife

Jesse Lamb Date: Frances Williamson
DOB: Location: DOB:
City/State: City/State:
Residence: Children Residence:
Residence: Sarah Carolyn Lamb Residence:

(1821-1884)

married

Samuel J Mayes

(1823--1842)
Date of Death: Date of Death:
Cemetery: Cemetery:
City, State: City, State:
Father: Father:
Mother: Mother:

NOTES NOTES

Note: Sarah Caroline Lamb was the grandmother to both Josephine Drummond (5.2) and
Elizabeth Jane Cartee (5.1). That is, two of Sarah's granddaughters proved to be two
GGrandmothers of Ann Ella (nee Henderson) Collier.

Duplicate of Para 7.4
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8.17 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGrandparents
(mother/father/father/father/father)

Husband Marriage Wife
Charles Perceival Montgomery, | Date: 1774 Margaret Anne Reynolds
Sr
DOB: 1748 Location: Charleston, SC DOB: 1752
City/State: Antrim, Northern City/State: Antrim, Northern
Ireland Ireland
Residence: 1790 - Camden, Children Residence: 1790 - Camden,
Fairfield District, SC Fairfield District, SC
Residence: 1800+ - Fairfield David Milton Montgomery | Residence:
District, SC (1788-1872)
Date of Death: 300ct1820 Date of Death: 16Aug1818
Cemetery: Old Brick Church Cemetery: Old Brick Church
Cemetery, Little River, SC Cemetery, Little River, SC
City, State: Fairfield, SC City, State: Charleston, SC
Father: Father:
Hugh William Montgomery Martin Reynolds
(1720-1779) (1732-1820)
- Born in Ireland; died in SC
Mother: Mother:
Lady Mary Moore
(1729-1765)
Born & died in Ireland

NOTES NOTES
Families of Charles and Margaret emigrated Margaret may also have been called 'Margaret
from Ireland via Charleston, SC arriving in of Calderwood'.

1774.

1778 - Military, Private/Waxhaw, Lancaster,
SC - served under Gen Francis Marion.

DAR Number A078960/

DNA Markers: Montgomery, Charles/

Per 1800 census, Charles owned 2 slaves; Per
1810 census, Charles owned 10 slaves.

One record indicates Charles owed SC taxes on
200 acres for state tax and 100 acres for county
tax.

Note: Charles and Margaret arrived Charleston, SC in 1774 on the same ship. Both were
Irish immigrants - Margaret was only 16 years of age. They met for the first time on this
ship and had agreed to marry once they reached America. They married about one year
after their arrival in Charleston, SC.

Note: Charles and Margaret were members of the Old Brick Church (initially called
Ebenezer) in Fairfield District, SC during the same time as Rev James Rogers (see para
8.23) was its first pastor.
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Descendants of Charles Perceival Montgomery, Sr and Margaret Anne Reynolds

Charles Perceival Montgomery, Sr married Margaret Anne Reynolds (1752-1818) in
1774 in Charleston, SC

1.

Sarah Montgomery (1777-300ct1813)

Sarah married William Bell (1774-1845) in 1800
1) Nancy Bell (-)

2) Margaret Peggy Bell (1795-1800)

3) James Bell (1802-1809)

4) William Bell (1803-1877)

5) Jane Bell (1806-1829)

6) William Bell (1808-1881)

7) Charles Bell (1823-)

Jane Montgomery (1779-1849)

Jane married James Bell (1778-1820) in 1798
1) Nancy Bell (1793-1885)

2) Margaret Bell (1801-1861)

3) William M Bell (1803-1877)

4) James M Bell (1807-1867)

5) Sarah Margaret Bell (1809-1870)

Jane married Dr Henry Meriner (1787-1831) in 1820
1) Benjamin Franklin Meriner (1819-1840)
2) William Henry Meriner (1821-1861)
Jane married James Kincaid (1780-1849)

Charles Montgomery, Jr (14Jun1781-12Mar1851)
Charles married Sarah Reynolds ( -1809) in 1801
1) Lucy Montgomery (1805-)

2) Mary 'Polly' Montgomery (1806-1865)

3) James David Montgomery (1809-1866)
Charles married Elizabeth Thompson (1790-1846)
1) William T Montgomery (1812-1887)

2) Charles C Montgomery (1815-1850)

3) Harriet T Montgomery (1817-1893)

4) David F Montgomery (1819-1888)

5) John T Montgomery (1821-1883)

6) Samuel A Montgomery (1822-1854)

7) Nancy E Montgomery (1831-1851)
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William Montgomery (16Jun1783-16Feb1869)
William married Mary Martin (-)

1) Mary Phillipie Montgomery (1809-)
William married Rebecca Kincaid (1794-1880)
1) Alexander K Montgomery (1813-)

2) Sarah Beaufort Montgomery (1816-1844)
3) Spencer W Montgomery (1819-1881)

4) Charles Warren Montgomery (1822-1843)
5) Rebecca C Montgomery (1825-)

6) William Franklin Montgomery (1828-)

7) Annie Montgomery (1831-)

8) Hugh R Montgomery (1833-1860)

James A Montgomery (1784-16Feb1869)
James married Martha Kirk (1787-1856)

1) Hugh A Montgomery (1810-1868)
2) Nancy A Montgomery (1810-1866)
3) James M Montgomery (1813-1875)
4) Julia A Montgomery (1815-1871)

5) Charles F Montgomery (1817-1875)
6) Eleanor K Montgomery (1818-1910)
7) Mary Jane Montgomery (1821-1848)
8) Frances B Montgomery (1823-1896)
9) Martha E Montgomery (1825-1859)

Margaret Montgomery (19Nov1785-1Nov1820)

Margaret married Charles W Bell (1785-1844) on 27Aug1807
1) James Bell (1808-1845)

2) William C Bell (1810-1845)

3) Charles E Bell (1812-1825)

4) Mary Ann Bell (1815-1847)

5) David Bell (1818-1862)

6) Nancy Bell (1820-1854)

Mary Anne Montgomery (1785-Dec1850)
Mary married James Brock (1782-1855)
1) John S Brock (1804-1893)

2) Malinda C Brock (1806-1889)

3) James M Brock (1810-1871)

4) Alfred Echford Brock (1816-1882)
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5) Charles Harrison Brock (1820-1890)
6) Elias J Brock (1825-)
7) Mary Caroline Brock (1826-1880)

John Montgomery (1786-1869)

John married Lydia Chambers (1786-1848)

1) Rebecca Montgomery (1810-)

2) Susannah Montgomery (1812-1909)

3) John Montgomery (1813-1913)

4) Elijah Montgomery (1815-1915)

5) Michael Montgomery (1816-1916)

6) Charlotte Lottie Montgomery (1818-1862)

David Milton Montgomery (1Jan1787-8Dec1872)
David married Martha Mattie Thompson (1787-1871) on 8Aug1811
1) William Milton Montgomery (1812-1848)
William married Sarah Isabel Nason (1819-1866)
2) Charles Percival Montgomery (1814-1867)
3) Elizabeth Montgomery (1816-1906)
4) James A Montgomery (1816-1893)
5) John Thompson Montgomery (1818-1903)
6) Martha Elizabeth Montgomery (1825-1907)
7) Margaret Montgomery (1827-1868)

Nancy Montgomery (1790-23Jan1851)

Nancy married John Thomas Thompson (1786-1868) in 1819
1) Harriett Thompson (1820-)

2) Charles Thompson (1822-)

3) Margaret Eurena Thompson (1824-1854)
4) William Thompson (1824-)

5) John Thompson (1826-)

6) Nancy Thompson (1828-)

7) Mary Isabel 'Mae' Thompson (1832-1913)
8) Sallie A Thompson (1835-1899)

9) David M Thompson (1837-1857)

Martha Montgomery (1794-251852)

Martha married (Senator) William Curry (1782-1853)
1) Margaret Jane Curry (1815-1849)

2) John Madison Curry (1817-1878)
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3)
4)
5)
6)
7)

William Marion Curry (1821-1889)
Martha Elizabeth Curry (1827-1864)
David S Curry (1828-1852)

Spencer W Curry (1830-1856)
Robert R Curry (1831-1862)

12. Hugh Montgomery (15May1796-2Sep1849)
Hugh married Isabella Bell (1797-1891)

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)

James Montgomery (1815-)

Charles Montgomery (1818-1822)

Nancy Elizabeth Montgomery (1823-1844)
Margaret Jane Montgomery (1825-1842)
William Bell Montgomery (1829-1904)
Isabella Betty Montgomery (1834-)
Josephine Montgomery (1844-)

Mary Montgomery (1846-)
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Old Brick Church, Little River, SC
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Tombstone - Charles Montgomery, Sr at Old Brick Church Cemetery, Fairfield, SC
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Burial Vaults - Charles Montgomery, Sr (front) and Margaret Reynolds (beside Charles)
in Old Brick Church Cemetery at Monticello, Fairfield County, SC

Tombstone - Margaret Reynolds in Old Brick Church Cemetery, Fairfield, SC
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8.18

Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents
(mother/father/father/father/mother)

Husband Marriage Wife
William Thompson Date: 1784 Elizabeth Martin
DOB: 1762 Location: Fairfield DOB: 20Jan1761

District, SC

City/State: Charleston County, City/State: Winnsboro,
SC Fairfield District, SC
Residence: 1842 - Charleston Children Residence: 1842 - Charleston
County, SC County, SC
Residence: Martha 'Mattie' Thompson | Residence: 1850 - Oktibbeha

Montgomery
(1787-1871)

County, MS

Date of Death: 22Nov1842

Date of Death: 18Jul1851

Cemetery: Thompson-Glenn
Family Cemetery, Jenkinsville,
Fairfield District, SC

(near High Point, SC)

Cemetery: Associated Reform
Presbyterian Cemetery,
Starkville, MS

City, State: Winnsboro,
Fairfield District, SC

City, State: Starkville,
Oktibbeha County, MS

Father: Father:

John Thompson William Martin

) (1729-1807)

- born in England, died in SC

Mother: Mother:
NOTES NOTES

William served as private in 3rd SC Regiment
in 1779 under Capt William Liddel and Col

William Thompson.

Elizabeth - along with some of her children -
emigrated from SC to MS once her husband
(William) had died in 1842. No indication that
Elizabeth remarried after her hushand's death.

Per 1850 census, Elizabeth (age 90) was living
with her daughter Elizabeth and David
Montgomery in Oktibbeha County, MS

Marriage notice for William and Elizabeth was
posted in the Charleston Observer newspaper.

Rev William Martin (1729-1807) was born in
Ireland and immigrated to Chester County, SC
from Northern Ireland in 1772. Rev Martin was
a leader in the Reformed Presbyterian Church
in both Ireland and in South Carolina. Suspect
that he was a close relative of Elizabeth Martin.
Interestingly, both Elizabeth Martin and
Charles Montgomery (see para 8.17) were
members of the Associated Reform
Presbyterian Church in Starkville, MS by 1850.
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Descendants of William Thompson and Elizabeth Martin

William Thompson (1762-1842) married Elizabeth Martin (1761-1851) in 1784 at
Fairfield County, SC

1.

John Thomas Thompson (10Feb1788-80ct1868)

John married Nancy Montgomery (1790-23Nov1839) in 1819

- Nancy's father was Charles Montgomery and her mother was Kiss Reynolds
- John fought with Andrew Jackson at the Battle of New Orleans in 1814

1) Margaret Eurena Thompson (1824-1854)

2) Mae Isabell Thompson (1833-)

3) Sallie A Thompson (1835-1899)

4) David M Thompson (1837-1857)

Martha Mattie Thompson (26Dec1788-7Feb1871)

Martha married David Milton Montgomery (1787-1872) on 8Aug1811

1) William Milton Montgomery (1812-1848)
William married Sarah Isabel Nason (1819-1866)

2) Lizzie James Montgomery (1813-)

3) Charles P Montgomery (1814-1867)

4) Elizabeth Montgomery (1816-1906)

5) James A Montgomery (1816-1893)

6) John T Montgomery (1818-)

7) Emma Montgomery (1825-)

8) Martha Elizabeth Montgomery (1825-1907)

9) Margaret Montgomery (1827-1888)

Elizabeth Thompson (21Feb1790-31Dec1846)

Elizabeth married (Major) Charles P Montgomery (1781-1851)
1) Mary Montgomery (1806-1865)

2) James David Montgomery (1809-1860)

3) (Captain) William Thompson Montgomery (1812-1887)
4) Charles Montgomery (1815-1850)

5) Harriet T Montgomery (1817-1893)

6) David F Montgomery (1819-1888)

7) Samuel A Montgomery (1822-1854)

8) Nancy E Montgomery (1831-1851)

9) Lucy Montgomery (-)
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William Thompson (1796- )

William married Priscilla Anderson (1796-)
1) Rebecca E Thompson (1820-1880)
2) Jacob A Thompson (1822-)

3) Sarah Thompson (1823-)

4) Marilsa Thompson (1825-)

5) Martha Thompson (1825-)

6) Franklin Thompson (1833-)

7) Pashcal Thompson (1835-)

8) Martha Francis Thompson (1839-1927)
9) Caroline Thompson (1843-)

Mary Ann Harriett Thompson (1801-30Sep1839)
Mary married Adna Johnson (1797-)

1) Frank Adna Johnson (-)

2) Elizabeth Martin Johnson (1836-)

3) Harriet Ann Margaret Johnson (1839-)

Margaret Jane Thompson (1803-9May1859)

Margaret married Hargrave A Glenn (1807-1865) in 1830
1) Jeremiah Glenn (1831-1857)

2) John Milton Glenn (1834-1890)

3) Hargrove A Glenn (1836-)

4) David Locke Glenn (1837-1922)

5) Joseph H Glenn (1839-)

6) Sara Elizabeth Glenn (1841-1921)

7) Margaret Glenn (1843-)

James K Thompson (230ct1807- )
James married Mahala Sharp (1809-)
1) John Andrew Thompson (1839-1916)
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William Thompson estate, Apt 76, File 80

Lef t LWT - https://familysearch.org/pal:/MM9.3.1/TH-1-19416-5338030?cc=1919417
&wc=9385732

Appraisement 12 Aug 1842 by James Watt, J M Glenn, John A Martin [warrant also went
to Laban H Chappell & John L Mathews]. It was a fairly large estate.
[https://familysearch.org/pal:/MM?9.3.1/TH-1-19469-59734-
83?cc=1919417&wc=9385540]

Buyers: Thos Friday, A Johnson, J M Glenn, Wm Sloan, Thos Stanton, H A Glenn, M T
C Mooty, A McMeekin, J A Martin, David Montgomery, Charles Thompson, Wm Watt
Senr, B Austin, Wm J Stanton, Jos Hog, Dr T Mayo, Wm Richardson [bought slave
Nell], Nathan Lyles, Jas Montgomery, Jno Montgomery, Charles Martin [bought slave
old Hannah]

In 1849 a distribution was made to Adna Johnston, H A Glenn, William Thompson, John
Thompson, David Montgomery & wife, Charles Montgomery & wife.

Revolutionary War Story

Elisha Chavis is one of the many Pee Dee Indians that served in the Revolutionary War.
His company was formed by Captain John Allston to fight with Gen Francis Marion
against the British. His company was called 'Foot Rovers' and also 'Foot Rangers' or
Raccoon Company. The next in command Lt James Coachman recruited Pee Dee from
those who had lived on the reservation he established for them on his farm on the Edisto
River. This company was composed entirely of Pee Dee Indians and part of the regiment
serving under Colonel William Thompson, "Audited Accounts of Revolutionary Claims
against S.C., No. 91.S.C. State Archives, Columbia™.
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High Point Plantation (circa 1964) - near Jenkinsville in Fairfield County, SC was built
by William Thompson in 1800. The house is a two-story, frame farmhouse with a gable
roof and included the three northernmost bays of the present house. The original house
had exterior end chimneys. The interior of original portion of the house is characterized
by a hall and parlor plan, wide board walls, an enclosed corner stair, and a corner
cupboard. During the early antebellum period the house was extended to five bays. Both
the original portion of the house and the addition are sheathed in beaded weatherboard
and contain nine-over-nine windows on the first story and nine-over-six windows on the
second story. A one story, shed-roofed porch extends across the facade. The porch is
supported by square posts connected by a plain balustrade. There are stone steps leading
to the porch. A two-story ell on the rear of the house is believed to have been constructed
ca. 1870.

Upon his death on 22Nov1842, William Thompson died leaving High Point to his
daughter Margaret Jane and her husband Hargrove A. Glenn. The Thompson Family

Cemetery is located near the house.

High Point Plantation was listed in the National Register December 6, 1984.
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Tombstone - Elizabeth Martin at Associated Reform Presbyterian Cemetery, Starkville,
MS
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8.19 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(mother/father/father/mother/father)

Husband Marriage Wife
John Nason Date: 1765 Catherine O'Connor Atkins
DOB: 1740 Location: DOB: 1745
City/State: England City/State: Dublin, Cork,
Ireland
Residence: Children Residence:
Residence: Richard Henry Nason Residence:

(1775-1862)

married

Margaret Peggy Milling
(1784-1864)

(see para 7.10)

Date of Death: 1810

Date of Death: 1813

Cemetery:

Cemetery:

City, State: Youghal, Ireland

City, State: Cork, Cork, Ireland

Father: Father:

Richard Nason

(1710-1810)

Mother: Mother:
NOTES NOTES
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8.20

(mother/father/father/mother/mother)

Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

Husband

Marriage

Wife

(Captain) Hugh Milling

Date: 1777

Elizabeth Burney

DOB: 21Feb1752

Location: Jacksons Creek,
Fairfield County, SC
(Elizabeth - age 15)

DOB: 8Janl1762

City/State: Drumbo, Down,
Ireland

City/State: Scotland

Residence: 1771+ - Jacksons Children Residence:
Creek, Fairfield County, SC
Residence: Margaret Peggy Milling Residence:

(1784-1864)

Date of Death: 7May1837

Date of Death: 25Mar1829

Cemetery: Old Lebanon
Presbyterian Cemetery, Fairfield
County, SC

Cemetery: Old Lebanon
Presbyterian Cemetery,
Fairfield County, SC

City, State: Jacksons Creek,
Fairfield County, SC

City, State: Jacksons Creek,
Fairfield County, SC

Father: Father:
David Milling Sir Richard Burney
(1718-25Nov1778) (-1792)
B: Drumbo, County Down, B: Scotland
Ireland D: Scotland
D: Drumbo, County Down,
Ireland
Mother: Mother:
Anne Kelso Annie Walker
(Jul1720-) )
B: Glasgow, Lanarkshire, B: Scotland
Scotland D: Scotland
D: Down, Ireland

NOTES NOTES

Hugh was elected (or appointed) as 'Sheriff' of
Camden District, SC in 1785. In this role, he
often served as witness as to the truthfulness of
wills being submitted for probate.

Note: Both Hugh and Elizabeth entered
America via Charleston, SC - probably in 1771.
This could have been one of the ships in
caravan which brought Hugh Montgomery (see
para 9.33) and his family to America.

Per 1790 census, Hugh owned 5 slaves. Per
1820 census, Hugh owned 18 slaves.

In 1780, Hugh received a summons to serve on
a Grand Jury for the Camden District of S.C.

On 3Mar1826, Hugh Milling was added to the
U.S. Pension Roll of 1835 for his service
during the Revolutionary War as part of the
6th S.C. Regiment as a line officer. Effective
17Nov1823, Hugh began receiving a pension
of $480 per year.

Hugh's SAR Membership # 32550.

Elizabeth's SAR Membership # 34316.
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Descendants of Captain Hugh Milling and Elizabeth Burney

(Captain) Hugh Milling married Elizabeth Burney (1762-1829) in Jacksons Creek,
Fairfield City, SCin 1777

1.

David Thomas Milling (25May1782-3Jul1829)
David married Maria Latham (1791-1877)

1) John Milling (1818-1901)

2) Susan Celina Milling (1820-1910)

3) Thomas David Milling (1823-1879)

4) Nancy Mariah Milling (1826-1839)

Margaret Peggy Milling (19May1784-8Jul1864)
Margaret married Richard Henry Nason (1776-1862) in Nov1809
1) John Nason (1810-1850)
2) Elizabeth Catherine Nason (1814-)
3) Hugh Milling Nason (1817-)
4) Richard Jebez Nason (1817-1886)
5) Sarah Isabella Nason (1819-1866)
Sarah married William Milton Montgomery (1812-1848)
6) David Thomas Nason (1822-)
7) Robert Lithgre Milling Nason (1825-)

Elizabeth Milling (23Feb1786-31May1835)

Elizabeth married Samuel Q L Bones (1770-1823) in 1819
1) Mary Jane Bones (1809-1833)

2) Elizabeth Bones (1814-)

3) Sarah Milling Bones (1814-1832)

4) Samuel William Bones (1816-1858)

5) John Hugh Bones (1823-)

Dr John M Milling (17Jun1790-28Feb1864)

John married Mary Elizabeth Whitaker (1801-1863) on 4Mar1824
1) Sarah Milling (1824-1914)

2) Matilda Whitaker Milling (1826-1901)

3) Joseph Milling (1830-)

4) John Hugh Milling (1832-1844)

5) Elizabeth Burney Milling (1834-1839)

6) Harriet Emma Milling (1836-1915)

7) Isabella Milling (1839-)
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10.

Dr Robert Lithguo Milling (19Sep1792-310ct1841)
- born in Fairfield, SC; died in New Orleans, LA
Robert married Sarah Williams Perdue (1808-1873)
1) Sarah Amanda Milling (1833-1927)

Eliza Milling (9May1795-21Dec1829) - born & died in Fairfield County, SC
- No record of marriage

Sarah Sally Milling (7Oct1798-1Nov1824)

Sarah married James Glenn (1792-1831) on 5Jul1821
1) William Glenn (1820-1869)

2) Juliette Elizabeth Glenn (1822-)

3) Sarah Laura Anne Glenn (1823-)

Nancy Milling (17Mar1800-5May1832)

Nancy married Robert Millen (1799-1860) in 1826
1) Martha Lucinda Millen (1824-)

2) John Pressley Millen (1827-1887)

3) Margaret M Millen (1831-1870)

Maria Milling (25Apr1804-180ct1834)
Maria married David P Evans (-)
- No record of children

Isabella Milling (23Aug1806-1885)

Isabella married James T Owens (1806-1872)
1) Isabella Milling Owens (1831-1900)
2) John H Owens (1835-)

3) Margaret Owens (1838-)

4) Eunice Owens (1840-)

5) Elisha Owens (1842-)

6) Sarah Owens (1844-)

7) Edward T Owens (1849-)
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Hugh enlisted in the First Regiment on 4Nov1776 and served as a private under Captain
Charles C Pinckney. In addition, he served as a quartermaster, lieutenant, and captain in
the Sixth Regiment from 1777 to 1780. He was a volunteer in the battle of Fort Moultrie
and the siege of Charleston, where he was taken prisoner and placed on parole until the
end of the war. P.l.; S.C.H.&G., |, 52; A.A.5260; C114; X3874; Yearbook, 1893;
Crowder, I, 56; Heitman, p340, N.A.853.

Another record indicates that Hugh served with the S.C. 6th Regiment during the period
of 1Aug1779-1Dec1779. Hugh's rank listed as 'st'.

William Partridge served in the Third Regiment from 25Jun1775 to 1Jul1781. During
1779, he was under Captain John Hennington. At one time, he was a SERVANT to
Captain Hugh Milling. S.C.H.&G., II, 179; V,157; VI1,113; N.A.246; N.A.853; N.A.859.

Apparently, Hugh Milling was an energetic and opinionated type into his old age. One
article George found says that David Evans was a member of Congress in 1813-1814.
During his absence, Captain Hugh Milling took charge of his affairs and physiced his
negroes when sick. Further 'the old captain was severe on Generals Hampton and
Wilkinson and others in regard to their conduct of the war (of 1812) with the British,
saying that they could speculate in tobacco better than command armies.

Note: Based on his military service during the Revolutionary War, on 3Mar1803 Hugh
was declared eligible for 300 acres of land under the 'U.S. War Bounty Land Warrants,
1789-1858'.

Note: George does not have any record that indicates either location of the land or if
Hugh actually took possession of the 300 acres. There was a petition filed before U.S.
House of Representatives on 15Jan1819 to change location of the bounty land. Congress
rejected the petition. There was a second petition filed before U.S. House of
Representatives during 25th Congress, Session 2 which the heirs of Hugh Milling were
requesting commutation of half-pay - presumably some of Hugh's pay was withheld
during the war. In this case, Congress 'laid the petition on the table' with an "adverse'
report (i.e., sounds like they rejected it).

The following contributed by Findagrave member GMG, #47391530:

Died May 7, 1837, age 85 years, 2 mos. 16 days of Fairfield District on Jackson Creek,
Captain Hugh Milling, an officer in the army in the Amer. Rev. War. He was born in
Drumbe County Down, Ireland February 21, 1752 and migrated to America about 1771
and resided in Charleston in 1774 when the first Revolution movements were made there.
He joined a company of Grenadiers raised by Captain McCall, by whom the British
Arsenal was forced to open. In 1775 he became 1st. Sgt. in a company of Grenadiers
commanded by Charles Cotesworth Pinckney. In 1778 he was commissioned as 1st Lieut.
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in the 6th Cont. Reg. of SC and in 1779 as Captain of the same Regt. In 1783, he located
on his plantation on Jackson Creek and practiced medicine. Published in the Southern
Times and Gazette July 7, 1837

Following excerpt is from a 1916 application to the National Society Sons of American
Revolution:

Hugh Milling was a resident of Charleston, SC in 1774 when the first revolutionary
movements were made in that city. At that time, he joined a company of Grenadiers,
raised by Captain McCall, by which the British arsenal was forced open, and that
company and others were supplied with arms. In 1775, Hugh Milling became First
Sargeant in a company of Grenadiers commanded by Charles Cotesworth Pinckney. In
1778, he was commission 1st Lt in the 6th Continental Regiment of South Carolin, and in
1779 as captain in the regiments. He was engaged in the first and second battles of Fort
Moultrie, at the battle of Stone, at siege and storming of Savannah, in the war that carried
into the Cherokee Nation in Georgia and Florida, and in the unsuccessful expedition
against St Augustine, Florida. The continental regiments of South Carolina became
reduced in number by disease and battle and it became necessary to consolidate them.
This measure deranged the officers of the 6th Regiemt, and Captain Milling served as a
volunteer at the siege of Charleston. A short time before the city fell, he was ordered by
Governor Rutlege to endeavor to make his way through lines of the enemy and raise men
in the back country and come down in the rear of the besieging army. In this, together
with some other officers, he succeeded. He reached the upper districts and was engaged
in the service when he was taken by a party of Tories and lodged in the Camden gaol.
From there he was sent to Colonel Balfour, the British Commandant in Charleston, and
from there to Haddre's Point where he remained a prisoner under parole until end of the
war.

According to a Boston Post newspaper article, Captain Hugh Milling died on his farm at
the age of 85.
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8.21 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(mother/father/father/mother/father)

Husband

Marriage

Wife

(Captain) Elijah Bardwell

Date: 17Decl777

Sarah Worthington Smith

DOB: 12Jull751

Location: Belchertown,
Hampshire, Mass

DOB: 21Aprl752

City/State: Belchertown,
Hampshire, Mass

City/State: Belchertown,
Hampshire, Mass

Residence:

Children

Residence:

Residence:

Araunah Bardwell, MD
(25Jul1784-1837)

Residence:

Date of Death: 12May1809

Date of Death: 280ct1824

Cemetery: Goshen Center
Cemetery, Goshen, Hampshire
County, Mass

Cemetery: Goshen Center
Cemetery, Goshen, Hampshire
County, Mass

City, State: Goshen, Hampshire,
Mass

City, State: Goshen,
Hampshire, Mass

Father: Father:
Joseph Bardwell Elijah Smith
(1713-1791) (1723-1828)
Mother: Mother:

Lydia Morton
(1715-1800)

Sybil Worthington
(1725-1827)

NOTES

NOTES

Captain Bardwell was known as a man of
prominence and action in the Congregational

Church,

Sarah married Oliver Taylor after Capt
Bardwell died. Date unk

Several of the Bardwell children became a
'foreign’ missionary (or a missionary's wife).
Two couples started Choctaw mission at
location which became Starkville, MS.
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A. Elijah Bardwell married Sarah Worthington Smith (1752-1824) on 17Dec1777 in

Descendants of Elijah Bardwell and Sarah Worthington Smith

Belchertown, Mass

1.

Rhoda Bardwell (20ct1778-15Feb1858)
Rhoda married Zenas Hawks (-) on 4Dec1803
Rhoda married Rev William Fisher (1775-1840) on 250ct1807

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)

Rev William Fisher (1809-1883)
Sarah Smith Fisher (1810-1851)
Rebecca Fisher (1813-1838)

Horatio Bardwell Fisher (1816-1844)
James Richard Fisher (1818-1894)
Catherine Avery Fisher (1820-1905)

Sophia Bardwell (31Aug1780-13Dec1821)
Sophia married Reuben Dresser (1772-1845) on 12May1807

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

Henry Dresser (1811-1828)

Mary Bardwell Dresser (1813-1851)
Francis Dresser (1815-1880)

Sophia Dresser (1817-)

Laura Dresser (1820-1881)

Laura Bardwell (6Jul1782-1862)
Laura married Rev Calvin Cushman (1784-1841) in Nov1809

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)

Della Cushman (-)

Mary Louisa Cushman (1814-1872)
Harriet Amelia Cushman (1816-)

Ralph Alonzo Cushman (1820-1837)
Calvin Luther Cushman (1822-)

Horatio Bardwell Cushman (1822-1904)

Araunah Bardwell, MD (25Jul1784-250ct1838)
Araunah married Sarah Sally Guion (1785-1841) on 31Dec1812 in
Murfreesborough, NC

1)
2)

3)
4)
5)

Horatio John Bardwell (1813-1853)

Dr Brainard Bardwell (1817-1850)

Brainard married Martha M E Rogers (1827-1860)
James Richards Bardwell (1820-1854)

Joseph Bardwell (1822-1823)

Cecil Bardwell (1824-1902)
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6) Sarah Ann Bardwell (1826-1828)

Rev Elijah Bardwell (7Jun1786-9Dec1853)

Elijah married Lavinia S Howes (1791-1812) on 5Dec1811
1) Sarah R Bardwell (1820-)

2) Milner Bardwell (1828-1907)

3) Philehda Bardwell (1832-)

4) Sophia D Bardwell (1834-)

5) James J Bardwell (1839-)

Elijah married M. Hillhouse (-)

Horatio Bardwell (11Mar1788-5May1866)

Horatio married Rachel Furbush (1786-1871) on 11Jul1815
1) Horatio F Bardwell (1816-1817)

2) Lucy R Bardwell (1817-1819)

3) Horatio F Bardwell (1819-)

4) Edward W Bardwell (1821-1821)

5) Simeon Bardwell (1822-1881)

6) Henry M Bardwell (1824-1824)

7) Edward Warren Bardwell (1825-)

8) James Richards Bardwell (1825-)

Selah Bardwell (22Feb1791-26Nov1870)

Selah married Clarissa Helen Hosford (1797-1870) on 23Feb1817
1) Rachel Bardwell (-)

2) Horatio Richards Bardwell (1819-1895)

3) Elijah Bardwell (1823-1886)

4) Jeremiah Hallock Bardwell (1826-)

5) Ethan Smith Bardwell (1828-1905)

6) Wealthy Bardwell (1831-)

7) Charles S Bardwell (1836-)

8) William Bardwell (1837-1895)

Sarah Bardwell (22Feb1793-26Apr1825)
Sarah married Rev James Richards (1784-1822) on 31May1815
- No record of children (missionary to Ceylon)
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9. Aurelia Bardwell (11May1796-11Aug1869)
Aurelia married Benjamin White (1787-1873) in ~1814
1) Clarissa White (1815-1876)
2) William White (1819-)
3) Julia M White (1820-1877)
4) Henry White (1823-1872)
5) Benjamin F White (1825-1873)
Aurelia married Samuel Naramore (1793-1829) on 15Dec1820

10. Porcius Gender Bardwell (14May1798-1812)

B. Sarah Worthington Smith Bardwell married Oliver Taylor (-) after 1810
- No children of this marriage

Elijah was in Captain Thomas Wait Foster's Company of Artillery, Col Ruggles
Woodbridge's regiment list of men dated Cambridge 25Apr1775. Elijah was also a
private in Captain Cowles' Company, Col Woodbridge's regiment. Company returned
October 1775 reporting as serving from 19Apr1775 to 9May1775. As that date, Elijah
was transferred to the artillery. Also 3rd Sergeant of Captain Foster's Company, Col
Richard Girdley's (artillery) regiment. Muster roll dated 1Augl1775: enlisted 28Aprl1775,
served 3 months and 11 days. Elijah returned Oct1775. Also order for bounty coat or its
equivalent in money. Afterwards, Elijah was Captain of militia. Record found in Mass.
Soldiers and Sailors in War of the Revolution, Vol I, page 600 and "History of Goshen",
Mass. page 134.

Elijah Bardwell (1753-1809)
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Tombstone - Captain Elijah Bardwell and Sarah Worthington Smith in Goshen Center
Cemetery at Goshen, Mass
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8.22 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(mother/father/father/mother/mother)

Husband Marriage Wife
Dr Isaac Guion Date: 1776 Ferebee Pugh Williams
DOB: 29Marl1741 Location: Church of DOB: 24May1746

Chirst, Craven County, NC

City/State: New Rochelle,
Westchester County, NY

City/State: Fort Barnwell,
Craven County, NC

Residence: 1785+ - New Bern, Children Residence:
Craven County, NC
Residence: Sarah "Sally" Guion Residence:

(2Apr1785-22Jul1841)

Date of Death: 21May1803

Date of Death: 10Feb1811

Cemetery: Cemetery:

City, State: New Bern, Craven City, State: New Bern, Craven
County, NC County, NC

Father: Father:

Isaac Guion Col John Williams
(1716-1784) - died in Rye, (-)

Westchester County, NY

Mother: Mother:

Anna Marie Bolt
(1713-1757) - died in Rye,
Westchester County, NY

Ferebe Pugh
(1723-1759) - died in Va

NOTES

NOTES

George has not found any reference to burial Ferebee was sister of NC governor Gen

location for either Isaac or Ferebee.

Williams.

Ferebee was first married to Stephen Leigh.

Brigadier General Dr Isaac Guion Il1 of North Salem served as a physician and surgeon
in Continental Army Commissary and Paymaster for 7th NC Troops. Became POW at
Charlestowne in May1780. Ensign in Colonel John Lamb's 2nd Artillery. According to
Long Island Genealogy site, Captain Isaac Guion was one of many "Patriot officers,
mostly continental, who were refugees from their homes in New York City and vicinity

during occupation by the British

Army from 1776 to November 25, 1783.

Dr Guion moved to White Oak River Plantation where he owned 12 slaves in 1800.

From there, his family moved to

New Bern, NC. Member of NC State Convention in

1788. "Worshipful Master" 1788-1790 for St John's Free Masons Lodge. Was partner in
a store in Swansborough with William Ferrand.
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Descendants of Dr Isaac Guion and Ferebee Pugh Williams
Ferebee Pugh Williams married Stephen Leigh (-)

1. Sarah "Sallie" Leigh (1765-1791) - daughter of Stephen Leigh
Sarah married John Haywood (1756-) - Treasurer of NC for 40 years

Dr Isaac Guion (1741-1803) married Ferebee Pugh Williams (1746-1811) in 1776 in
Craven County, NC

1. Isaac Louis Leigh Guion (10Sepl1778-27Feb1816)
Isaac married Susan Waller (-) on 21May1822
1) Sarah A Guion (1825-)
2) John Guion (1826-)

2. Elizabeth Pugh Guion (10Sep1778-27Feb1816)
Elizabeth married Francis Hawks (-27Feb1816) in Dec1814
1) Mary Lister Hawks (-)
2) Susanna Hawks (-)
3) Julia Mary Hawks (-)
4) Frances Sarah Hawks (-)
5) Phebe Rice Hawks (-)
Phebe married Walker Anderson (1st Chief Justice of FL Supreme Court)
6) Dr Francis Lister Hawks (-)
7) Samuel Cicero Hawks (-)
8) Bishop Cicero Stephens Hawks (-)
9) John Stephens Hawks (-)
10)  William Nassau Hawks (-)

3. Ann Marie Guion (150ct1780-)
Ann married Dr Hugh Jones (-) on 4Aug1804
1) Eliza Jones (-)
2) Frances Jones (-)
3) Julia Jones (-)
4) Harriett Jones (-)
5) Ann Marie Jones (-)

4. John Williams Guion (14Feb1783-17Jul1840)
John married Mary Wade (10Jun1790-12Dec1818) on 8Dec1811
1) Haywood Williams Guion (8Jun1814-19Jul1876)
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Haywood married Caroline R Moore (-4Sep1854) on 7Feb1840
Caroline was dau of Supreme Court Chief Justice Alfred Moore
2) Dr John Amos Guion (22Sep1816-14Mar1894)
John married Susan Sydney Roberts ( -1880) on 14Mar1843
3) Isaac Guion (190ct1818-30Apr1843)
- No record of marriage
4) Lt Col Henry Tilman Guion (10Aug1821-22Jan1876)
5) Ferebe Eliza Guion (22Jan1823-) on 24Apr1844
6) Mary Jane Guion (24Aug1824-26Feb1827)
7) Major Benjamin Simmons Guion (16Jul1826-9Nov1893)

Margaret Sarah Guion (2Apr1785-22Jul1841)
Margaret married Dr Andrew Scott (1784-1837) on 5Dec1809
1) Colonel Henry Leigh Scott (-)
2) Lawrence Scott (-)
3) Guion Leigh Scott (-)
Margaret married Dr Araunah Bardwell (1784-1837) on 3Dec1812
1) Dr Brainard Bardwell (1817-1850)
Brainard married Martha Elvira Rogers (1827-1860)
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8.23 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents
(mother/father/mother/father/father)
Husband Marriage Wife
Rev James Rogers Date: ~1792 Jane Wilson Murray
DOB: 2Augl768 Location: Fairfield DOB: ~1774
County, SC
City/State: County Monaghan, City/State: Fairfield District,
Ireland SC
Residence: 1789+ - Fairfield Children Residence:
District, SC
Residence: John Rogers Residence:

(6Feb1793-9May1854)

married

Martha Fullerton
(1797-1827)

Date of Death: 21Aug1830

Date of Death: ~1793
(or possibly 30Jul1803)

Cemetery: Old Brick Church
Cemetery, Monticello, Fairfield

Cemetery: (near) Old Brick
Church Cemetery, Monticello,

County, SC Fairfield County, SC
City, State: Fairfield County, City, State: Fairfield County,
SC SC
Father: Father:
Likely born & died in Ireland
Mother: Mother:
Likely born & died in Ireland
NOTES NOTES

Rev James Rogers was the first pastor of the
Old Brick Church - his ministry spanned 40
years. He was a native of Ireland and came as
a licentiate to America in December 1789. He
was installed as pastor on 23Feb1791.

Rev Rogers sired only one child (John Rogers)
even though he was married three times.

Rev James Rogers was married three times:

1 - Wife #1 was Jane Wilson Murray ( -1803)
2- Wife #2 was Celia Davis ( -1808)

3- Wife #3 was Jane Adger (1796-).

His will stated that he wished to be buried
beside his beloved former wife Celia. Celia
Rogers died Sept 1818 at age 30 years.

Thus far, George has been unable to find any
notice regarding death or burial place of Jane
Wilson Murray. Suspect she is buried at Old
Brick Church Cemetery - where her husband
was the pastor - but her name does not appear
on list of those buried there. Possible
explanation - Jane was not buried in Old Brick
Church Cemetery because she died in 1793 and
the church did not yet have a church cemetery.

James' will split his estate between his 3rd wife
Celia and his six grandchildren (Fullerton,
Jane, James, Humphrey, Joanna, and Martha)
by his only child John Rogers.

James' will names wife #3 Jane Adger, nephew
General James Rogers, and brother-in-law
John Adger as executors of his estate. The will
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mentions a 'plantation’ owned by James.

As an immigrant, James entered the U.S. in
Charleston, SC in 1789 aboard the ship Boyer.

Source from the News & Herald, Winnsboro, SC, June 18,1901: The Rev James Rogers
was for many years principal of the Monticello Academy in its early existence. He first
married a Miss Boyd; (error) - wife #1 was Jane Wilson Murray) they had one son,
John. After her death, he married Miss Celia Davis, sister of Colonel John Davis; she left
no children. Rev James Rogers was for many years pastor of the Presbyterian Church
near Kincaid's bridge, called the Brick Church. He died at White Hall, where Mr Thomas
McGill now lives about the year 1830.

Source: Columbia Telescope, November 12, 1830: Died on the 21st of August, of
dropsey at the house of William Adger, Esq, in Fairfield, the Rev James Rogers in the
sixty second year of his age. After completing his education in Scotland, Mr Rogers was
licensed to preach the Gospel, in Ireland, his native county, at the age of twenty-one. He
shortly came to America and located in the Fairfield District.

Tombstone - Reverend James Rogers @ Old Brick Church Cemetery, Monticello,
Fairfield County, SC
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Note: Charles & Margaret Montgomery (see para 8.17) were also neighbors and
members of the Old Brick Church while Rev James Rogers was its minister.

Tombstone Inscription - Reverend James Rogers

James graduated from Glascow University and studied theology two terms with Dr
Lawson at Selkirk, Scotland. He was licensed 8Sep1789 so that he might go to South
Carolina with a brother and sister. He landed in Charleston, SC on 25Dec1789 and soon
afterward went to Fairfield and Abbeville Districts.
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George's research indicates following chronology for life of Rev James Rogers

1768 - James Rogers was born in County Monaghan, Ireland
1789 - James Rogers was ordained as a Presbyterian minister in Ireland
1789 - Rev James Rogers immigrated via Charleston, SC aboard the ship Boyer
1791 - Rev James Rogers became first past of Old Brick Church in Fairfield District, SC
1792 - Rev James Rogers married Jane Wilson Murray (~1774-)
1793 - Son John Rogers was born
1795 - Founded Monticello Academy and presided over it for more than 25 years. This
academy was somewhat famous in its day and many men who afterwards became famous
in the South obtained the rudiments of an education in this school.
1803 - The Associate Reformed Synod of the Carolinas was organized at Rev Rogers'
church
1803 - Jane died early - reason unknown. Open question: Why would James call 'Celia
Rogers' his 'beloved wife' whom he wanted to be buried next to? Also, Jane is not listed
as being buried in Old Brick Church Cemetery. One possible explanation - this new
church did not have a cemetery during its first years of operation.
1805 - Rev Rogers married wife #2 Celia Davis (1778-1808).
1808 - Celia Davis Rogers dies at age 30
1815 - Rev Rogers married wife #3 Jane Adger (1796-). Jane would have been 18 years
of age in 1815.
1830 - Rev Rogers died

- died of dropsey at home of William Adger, Esq

- Will named wife #3 (Jane Adger), brother-in-law John Adger, and nephew

General James Rogers as executors
- James' will mentions his "plantation™ (size unknown)

Apparently, Rev Rogers was actually the pastor of three churches in the immediate area
for many years. He was pastor of King's Creek and Cannon's Creek Churches in Fairfield
County until 1815 when he resigned his pastorate of these two churches. He was the first
pastor of Ebenezer Church (now called Old Brick Church) from its inception in 1791
until his death in 1830.
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8.24

(mother/father/mother/father/mother)

Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

Husband

Marriage

Wife

David Fullerton

Date: 18Sep1792

Joanna Lind

DOB: 40ct1772

Location: Greencastle,
Franklin County, Pa

DOB: 15Janl1770

City/State: Greencastle,
Franklin County, Pa
("in Cumberland Valley")

City/State: Greencastle,
Franklin County, Pa

Residence: Greencastle, Children Residence:
Franklin County, Pa
Residence: Martha Fullerton Residence:

(1797-1827)

Date of Death: 1Feb1843

Date of Death: 29Jul1837

Cemetery: Cedar Hill
Cemetery, Franklin County, Pa

Cemetery: Cedar Hill
Cemetery, Franklin County, Pa

City, State: Greencastle,
Franklin County, Pa

City, State: Greencastle,
Franklin County, Pa

Father:
Esqg. Humphrey Fullerton 111
(1746-1790)

Father:

Rev Matthew Lind
(10Aug1731-21Apr1800)

B: County Antrim, Northern

Ireland
D: Franklin County, PA
Mother: Mother:
Martha Mitchell Jennet Fulton
(1750-1792) (-)
NOTES NOTES

David married wife #2 Esther Robison (1799-
1880) after wife #1 Joanne Lind died in 1837.
David and Esther were married in the
Presbyterian Church of the Upper West
Conogogheaue in Mercersburg, Franklin
County, Pa.

If DOBs are correct, then Humphrey Fullerton

was about one year old when David and Joanna
were married. George suspects (but cannot
prove) that Joanna married unk husband #1 who
died ~1791 after she became pregnant.

David served in US House of Representatives
from Pa 5th district from 4Mar1819-
15May1820 as a Democratic Republican.
David voted for the Missouri Compromise in
1820. David also served as Member of the
Pennsylvania State Senate in 1827.

27Aug1814-21Sep1814 - David served as a
Major during the War of 1812. He later
applied for a pension based on this service.

David was a member of Session of Associate
Reformed Church of Greencastle, Franklin
County, Pa

David's career was mostly in banking and
mercantile.

1842 - David was member of Board of
Trustees for Marshall College of Pennsylvania.
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Descendants of David Fullerton and Joanna Lind

Joanna Lind (1770-1837) married ?? (-1790)

George suspects that unk hushband #1 died after Joanna became pregnant
with Humphrey - who was then adopted by David Fullerton when he and
Joanna married.

David Fullerton (1772-1843) married Joanna Lind (1770-1837) on 18Sep1792 at
Greencastle, Franklin County, Pa

1.

Humphrey Fullerton (1791-1849) - born in Greencastle, Pa - died in
California

Humphrey married Nancy Gormley (1811-1871)

1) David Fullerton (1838-)

2) Rev John Quincy Adams Fullerton (1845-1916)

3) Mary G Fullerton (1849-)

Jennet Fullerton (25Nov1793-18Aug1816) - lived entire life in
Greencastle, Pa
- No record of marriage

Matthew Fullerton (1794-)
- No record of marriage

Martha Fullerton (1797-1827) - born in Greencastle, Franklin County, Pa
married Rev John Rogers (1793-1854)

1) James Calvin Rogers (1820-1863)

2) Humphrey Warren Rogers (1822-1856)

3) Joanna E L Rogers (1824-1848)

4) Martha Mary Elvira Rogers (1826-1851)

Joanna Fullerton (23Jun1799-30Apr1849) - born & died in Newcastle, Pa
Joanna married Alexander Gordon, Jr (1803-1886) on 24Feb1825 in
Greencastle, Pa
1) Judge David Fullerton Gordon (1825-1881)

David married Ruanna Sara Mcllvaney
2) Matthew Alexander Gordon (1827-1907)
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Matthew married Margaret McGauphey (-)
3) Jeremiah Smith Gordon (1829-1904)
4) Humphrey Fullerton Gordon (1832-1907)
5) Ann Elizabeth Gordon (1834-1835)
6) Cornelia Lind Gordon (1836-1837)
7) Joanna Mary Gordon (1837-1845)
8) James McCrary Gordon (1837-1845)
9) John Calvin Rogers Gordon (1843-1914)
10)  Martha Jane Gordon (1845-1898)

C.. David Fullerton married Esther Robison (1799-2Mar1880) on 5May1840 in
Mercersburg, Franklin County, Pa.
- Marriage was in the Presbyterian Church of the Upper West
Conogogheaue
- Apparently, Esther lived her entire life in Franklin County, Pa
- Esther's cause of death: Paralysis - probably a stroke
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Tombstones - David Fullerton and Joanna Lind
(Cedar Hill Cemetery, Greencastle, Franklin County, Pa)
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8.25 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(mother/father/mother/mother/father)

Husband Marriage Wife

Unknown Date: Unknown
DOB: Location: DOB:
City/State: City/State:
Residence: Children Residence:
Residence: John Fridell Residence:

(1795- )

(see para 7.13)
Date of Death: Date of Death:
Cemetery: Cemetery:
City, State: City, State:
Father: Father:
Mother: Mother:

NOTES NOTES
8.26 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents
(mother/father/mother/mother/mother)
Husband Marriage Wife

Unknown Date: Unknown
DOB: Location: DOB:
City/State: City/State:
Residence: Children Residence:
Residence: Elizabeth ?? Residence:

(1795- )

(see para 7.13)
Date of Death: Date of Death:
Cemetery: Cemetery:
City, State: City, State:
Father: Father:
Mother: Mother:

NOTES NOTES
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8.27 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(mother/mother/mother/father/father)

Husband Marriage Wife
Unknown Date: Unknown
DOB: Location: DOB:
City/State: City/State:
Residence: Children Residence:
Residence: Unknown Residence:
Date of Death: Date of Death:
Cemetery: Cemetery:
City, State: City, State:
Father: Father:
Mother: Mother:
NOTES NOTES
8.28 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents
(mother/mother/mother/father/mother)
Husband Marriage Wife
Unknown Date: Unknown
DOB: Location: DOB:
City/State: City/State:
Residence: Children Residence:
Residence: Unknown Residence:
Date of Death: Date of Death:
Cemetery: Cemetery:
City, State: City, State:
Father: Father:
Mother: Mother:
NOTES NOTES
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8.29 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(mother/mother/mother/father/father)

Husband Marriage Wife
Samuel Walter Bellah, Sr Date: 15Jul1786 Jane Morgan
DOB: 2Janl1752 Location: Rowan County, | DOB: 16Jul1763
NC

City/State: Rowan County, NC

City/State: Rowan County, NC

Residence: 1800- Oglethorpe Children Residence:
County, Ga

Residence: 1820 - Morgan Rev James Bellah Residence:
County, Ga (1788-1834)

Date of Death: 2Feb1828

Date of Death: 200ct1832

Cemetery:

Cemetery:

City, State: Morgan County, Ga

City, State: Morgan County,
Ga

Father: Moses Bellagh
(1732-1783)

Father: John Morgan
(1740-1827)

Mother: Agnes Hester
(1732-1819)

Mother: Jane Martin
(1742-1826)

NOTES

NOTES

Samuel was a veteran of Revolutionary War as
part of the Georgia militia.

Samuel's will indicated ownership of several
slaves. Per 1820 census, Samuel owned 3
slaves.

Samuel was one of the "fortunate drawers"
who actually was awarded land as part of the
1827 lottery. Being a prior member of the U.S.
military was required to be eligible for the
drawing.
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Descendants of Samuel Walter Bellah, Sr

A. Samuel Walter Bellah, Sr married Hanna Belle Poole (1753-1786) on 15Jul1773

1. Moses Bellah (9Jan1774-14Jul1809)
Moses married Eleanor Nellie Hudson (1793-1882)
- No record of children

2. Elizabeth Bellah (29Nov1775-1820)
Elizabeth married John 'Sassy Jack' McClung (1763-1844) on 7Aug1800
1) Reuben McClung (1785-1857)

2) Nancy McClung (1789-1840)

3) Richard McClung (1793-1861)

4) William Wiley McClung (1796-)

5) Robert McClung (1797-1870)

6) Drucilla McClung (1797-1892)

7) Hiram McClung (1802-1880)

8) Sewell Hiram McClung (1804-1893)
9) Elizabeth McClung (1805-1845)

10)  Margaret Amanda McClung (1815-)
11)  Julia Ann McClung (1820-)

3. Reuben Bellah (27Sepl1776 -11Mar1843)
Reuben married Mary Polly Lamb (1796-1876) on 29Jan1804
Reuben married Catherine Lamb (1780-1817)
1) Samuel P Bellah (1811-1889)
Reuben married Sarah Wilson (1795-) on 12Feb1819
1) James L Bellah (1824-)
2) Margaret Bellah (1826-)
3) Melinda Bellah (1827-1861)
4) Moses Bellah (1828-)
5) Reuben Anderson Bellah (1829-1899)

4. Samuel Washington Bellah (22Nov1778-29Sep1871)
Samuel married Mary Phillips (1789-1840) on 2Jan1798
1) Elizabeth Bellah (1810-)
2) Elijah Bellah (1813-)
3) Jemima Hannah Bellah (1815-)
4) Reuben Jackson Bellah (1817-1868)
5) Mary Bellah (1818-)
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Samuel married Lucinda Lindsey (1818-1882)
1) John R Bellah (1845-1936)

2) Zilpha C Bellah (1847-)

3) Samuel Washington Bellah (1849-1936)
4) Jane W Bellah (1849-)

5) Amazar Wilson Bellah (1858-1934)
Samuel married Susan Blackaby (1778-1842)

John Bellah (2Aug1782-29Sep1871)

John married Nancy McLane (1794-1877)
1) Matilda Bellah (1810-1870)

2) Samuel Jefferson Bellah (1811-1889)
3) Rebecca Bellah (1816-1846)

4) Rachel M Bellah (1817-1898)

5) Thomas Walter Bellah (1818-1902)
6) John Walter Bellah (1820-1910)

7) Nancy S Bellah (1823-1866)

8) Martha Jane Bellah (1825-1890)

9) Elizabeth Ann Bellah (1830-1919)

B. Samuel Walter Bellah, Sr (1752-1828) married Jane Morgan (1763-1832) on
18Jul1786

1.

Rev James Bellah (13Jun1788-16Jan1834)
James married Mary Polly Pharr (1786-1856) on 200c¢t1807
1) Ephaim Pharr Bellah (1808-1809)
2) Rev Samuel Steele Bellah (1810-1865)
Samuel married Elizabeth Caroline Middlebrook (1817-1896)
3) Miranda Collingsworth Bellah (1813-1883)
4) James Morgan Bellah (1816-1852)

Robert Bellah (10Sep1792-7Dec1792)
- Died at 3 months

Temperance "Tempy' Bellah (23Jan1795-17Jun1847)

Temperance married (Private) William Green Haynes (1791-1870) in
1816

1) Isaac Haynes (1757-1809)

2) Greenberry Haynes (1794-1854)

3) Robert Henry Haynes (1815-1864)

4) Margaret Jane Haynes (1818-1881)
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5) Samuel Parmenas Haynes (1822-1894)
6) Juida Ann Haynes (1826-1887)

7) Milton Green Haynes (1830-1864)

8) Mary Jane Haynes (1885-1938)

Mary Polly Bellah (10Jan1796-10Apr1874)

Mary married Jacob 'Jake' House (1789-1872) in 1833
1) Walter House (1834-1905)

2) William Lum House (1836-1913)

3) Elizabeth House (1837-1927)

4) Francis Marion House (1839-1909)

5) Hannah 'Anna’ House (1841-1933)

6) Nathaniel N House (1842-1931)

7) Nancy A House (1845-1920)

8) James Harrison House (1847-1926)

Rachel Bellah (21Apr1797-24Mar1845)

Rachel married Thomas Davis on 20Apr1818

1) Cordella Rachel Davis
Cordella married James F Riviere
1- Frank Davis Riviere (1865-1918)
2- Ida Cordella Riviere (1861-1937)

Rev Morgan Bellah (24Nov1799-26Mar1880)
Morgan married Elvey Price (1800-1880)

1) Rachel Elizabeth Bellah (1826- )
Rachel married Francis Riviere (1807-1881) on 300ct1849
1- Morgan Price Riviere (1850-1923)
2- Walter Parks Riviere (1852-1924)
3- Rosalie Riviere (1856-1882)
4- Cora Riviere (1858- )
5- Augusta Riiere (1861- )
6- George Pierce Riveire (1865-1919)

2) Mary Eleanor Bellah (1828-20Mar1904)
Mary married John Wesley Price (1823-1891)
1- Mary Isabella Price (1861-1931)
2- Mollie Price (1861-)
3- Mattie Price (1863-)

Generation 8
Page 8- 97



4- Jack Price (1865-)
3) Margery Ann Bellah (1830- )

4) William Parks Bellah (12Mar1832-17Dec1897)
William married Sarah Adelia Hardaway (1818-1897)
1- Clyde Bellah (1865-1960)
2- Lillian Bellah (1867-1956)
3- Hardaway A Bellah (1870-)

7. Mary 'Peggy’ Bellah (15Aug1801-29Mar1872)
Mary married John L Fitzgerald (1796-1879) on 25Feb1819
1) E J Fitzgerald (1819-1819)
2) Samuel Fitzgerald (1820-1903)
3) Granville Fitzpatrick (1822-1905)
4) Emily Fitzpatrick (1825-1880)
5) Leroy Fitzpatrick (1827-)
6) E M Fitzgerald (1829-)
7) Henrietta Fitzgerald (1831-1899)
8) Martha Fitzgerald (1835-)

8. Walter Steele Bellah (17Mar1804-1875)
Walter married Elizabeth Thomas (-)
- No record of children

Within 3 years of his marriage to Jane, Samuel began to purchase land in Georgia - where
their three younger children were born. In total, he accumulated at least 600 acres of land
- including a tract of 202.5 acres in Troup County by state of Georgia as the reward for
his services as a Revolutionary War soldier.

SAMUEL BELLAH (1752-1833) Revolutionary soldier, born in Rowan County, North
Carolina, married Jane Morgan, July 18, 1786, in Rowan County. Both died in Morgan
County, Georgia. Children: Rev. James Bellah, 1788; Robert, 1792; Tempee, 1795-1847;
Rachel, 1797-1845; Rev. Morgan, 1799-1880; Peggy, 1807-1872; Walter Steele, 1804.
[Source: "History of Lamar County" by E.T. Holmes; Mrs A. M. Lambdin: Mrs Nell Joy;
Eliza F Hill Manry; et al; pub. Barnesville, Ga. by Barnesville News-Gazette, 1932 -
Submitted by K. Torp] A resident of Rowan Co, NC during the Revolution. Samuel
Bellah was a soldier, and a "fortunate drawer" in the 1827 Lottery in Georgia. He also
served as a juror in Rowan Co, NC in 1782. He was born 1752 in Rowan, NC, and died
before 2 Feb 1828 in Morgan Co, GA - where his will was probated in 1828; burial place
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is unknown. He married 1) Hanna Poole, and 2) Jane Morgan. [Source:
http://henrywalton.georgiastatedar.org/morgan_patriot_bios.htm]

Samuel Bellah Bible Samuel Bellah

Generation 8
Page 8- 99


http://trees.ancestry.com/tree/70534127/photo/ZvcfLgNeITTE85WWfGiSgMzh1bFSWIcgRTMNGo6LLQxrNDtXBQAcSVlRzp5h4Mfr
http://trees.ancestry.com/tree/4670836/photo/uOHOyOf1qslXLxQhWT_idRg9wtiwjzhCexpsfRFfEoJi54k717q9l3iEyu0cMTdr

8.30 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

(mother/mother/mother/father/mother)

Husband Marriage Wife

Husband #1 Date: 1792 Jane Ashton Smith

DOB: Location: North Carolina | DOB: 1768

City/State: City/State: Mecklenburg
County, NC

Residence: Children Residence: 1786+ - Oglethorpe
County, Ga

Residence: Mary Polly Pharr Residence:

(1786-1855)

Date of Death: Date of Death: 1862

Cemetery: Cemetery:

City, State: City, State: Oglethorpe County,
GA

Father: Father:
James Smith
(1750-1817)

Mother: Mother:
Elizabeth Cowan
(1740-1857)

NOTES NOTES

Husband #2: Edward Neddy Pharr (1720-

1793)

B: Ulster Province, Altrium, Ireland

M:

Margaret.

George's Assumption: Jane married unk
Husband #1 in 1786 in Mecklenburg County,
NC. The couple emigrated to Oglethorpe
County, Ga soon after marriage where they had
two daughters. Husband #1 died about 1791
and Jane married Ephraim Alexander Pharr
(1757-1798) inearly 1792. Apparently
Ephraim then adopted the two girls Mary and
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Descendants of Jane Ashton Smith

A. Jane Ashton Smith (1768-1862) married ?? in NC in ~1786
Note: Both daughters were adopted by Ephraim Pharr after 1792.

1. Mary 'Polly’ Pharr (3Dec1788-1855)
Mary married Rev James Bellah (1788-1834) on 200ct1807
1) Ephraim Pharr Bellah (1808-1809)
2) Rev Samuel Steele Bellah (1810-1865)
Samuel married Elizabeth Caroline Middlebrook (1817-1896)
3) Miranda Collingsworth Bellah (1813-1883)
4) James Morgan Bellah (1818--1852)

2. Margaret 'Peggy’ Pharr (9Mar1792-50ct1872)
Margaret married John Candor McLaughlin (1794-1838) on 14Feb1814
1) Isaac Wood McLaughlin (-)
2) Eliza Pharr McLaughlin (1815-1892)
3) Sarah Adaline McLaughlin (1819-1889)
4) Frances Jane McLaughlin (1821-1894)
5) Mary Amanda McLaughlin (1826-1856)
6) Margaret Ann McLaughlin (1830-1810)
7) John Torrence McLaughlin (1831-1923)

B. Ephraim Alexander Pharr 111 (300ct1757-20ct1798) married Jane Ashton Smith
(1768- 1862) in 1792 in Greene County, Ga

1. Ephriam Alexander Pharr Sr (24Jun1794-26Jul1846)
Ephraim married Mary Matthews (1798-1844) on 12Apr1819
1) Elizabeth Jane Pharr (1820-)
2) Lucy Ann Pharr (1821-)
3) Rebecca Pharr (1822-)
4) Laura Pharr (1825-)
5) John Archer Pharr (1827-1852)
6) George Matthews Pharr (1830-1903)
7) Ephraim Alexander Pharr (1831-1869)

2. Jemima Pharr (1796- )
- No record of marriage

3. Elizabeth Holton Pharr (3Mar1798-9Nov1865)
- No record of marriage
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Notes on Ephraim

Ephraim recorded his will 12 July 1798 in Oglethorpe Co. He listed his wife as Jane,
His daughters were listed as Mary, Elizabeth, Margaret and Jemima and one son
Ephraim.

Info from Pharrs and Farrs. His Will is in book A pg. 78 at Lexington, Ga. dated
7/12/1798. recorded 10/2/1798. It is signed "Ephraim Phair”. His wife Jane and
Alexander McEwen are named as executors. He was a Revolutionary Soldier (See
Lottery of Olgethorpe Co., Ga. 1804 p. 9). His wife had two draws as a wife of a
Revolutionary soldier. His father's will in 1793 left him with "one third of price of land
that | sold to Nathanial Hicks and one ewe and one weather and 1/4 interest in a wagon."

One article told story of elementary student with Ephraim Pharr as the teacher. Ephraim liked to
use Dilworth's Spelling Book for spelling. However, he also liked to used the New Testament
from which he gave students questions to answer each evening.

Ephraim was also known as Ephraim Farr.

Ephraim Alexander Pharr I11 (300c¢t1757-20ct1798) was born in Bedford County, Ga. After he
married Jane Ashton Smith (1768-1862) in 1792, the couple lived in Oglethorpe County, Ga.
Ephraim's father was Edward "Neddy" Pharr (or Phair) (1720-1794) and his mother was Rachel
Beard (1730-1780).
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8.31

(mother/mother/mother/mother/father)

Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents

Husband Marriage Wife
Isaac John Middlebrook, Jr Date: 16Jul1781 Mary Lyon Ware
DOB: 20Sepl755 Location: Caswell County, DOB: 1760

NC

City/State: Caswell County,

City/State: Caswell County,

NC Pender, NC
Residence: 1790 - Hillsboro Children Residence:
District, Caswell County, NC

Residence: Zere Pendergrass Residence:

Middlebrook

(4Jul1782-16Apr1869)

Date of Death: 30Dec1830

Date of Death: 13May1805

Cemetery: Cemetery:

City, State: Covington, City, State: Covington, Newton
Newton County, Ga County, Ga

Father: Father:

Isaac John Middlebrooks, Sr ?? Ware

(1728-1817)

Adopted by: Robert Lyon, Jr
(1744-1804)

Mother: Note: Some of the Children Mother:

Anne P Sims dropped the 's" in their Rebecca ??

(1729-1795) surname. (1744- )
NOTES NOTES

Based on his Revolutionary War service, Isaac
was able to take part in the 1827 land lottery.
Uncertain if he actually won any land or not.

Note: Mary's mother was first married to ??
Ware - they had one daughter (i.e., Mary
Ware). Apparently, Robert Lyon adopted
Mary when he married her mother.

Isaac served as a private in Captain Roots
Company, Col Lytle's Regiment of Caswell
County, NC troops.

Generation 8
Page 8- 103




Descendants of Isaac John Middlebrook, Jr and Mary Lyon Ware

A. lsaac John Middlebrook, Jr married Mary Lyon Ware (1760-1805) on 16Jul1781 in

NC

1. Zere Middlebrooks (1782-1869)
Zere married Sophia Weston Shell (1789-1877) in 1808
1) Azariah Burton Middlebrook (1811-1881)
2) Thomas Lemon Middlebrook (1813-1849)
3) Zacheus Asbury Middlebrook (1815-1844)
4) Elizabeth Caroline Middlebrook (1817-1896)

Elizabeth married Rev Samuel Steele Bellah (1810-1865)

5) Anderson Crawford Middlebrook (1821-1901)
6) John Coleman Mlddlebrook (1821-1901)
7) Elijah Edmund Middlebrook (1823-1906)
8) Isaac Simeon Middlebrook (1826-1889)
9) Mary Anne Middlebrook (1828-1899)
10)  Sophia Weston Middlebrook (1830-1893)
11)  Zere Pendergrass Middlebrook (1835-1862)

2. Anderson Crawford Middlebrooks (1784-1871)
Anderson married Mary Oldham Thrasher (1806-1871)
1) John Anderson Middlebrook (1834-1843)
2) James Lyon Middlebrook (1836-1908)
3) Zara Barton Middlebrook (1837-1926)
4) Thomas Elder Middlebrook (1839-1924)
5) William David Middlebrook (1844-1862)

B. Isaac John Middlebrook, Jr married Milly Sutton (1765-1798) in 1790 in GA

1. David Middlebrooks (1788-1858)
- No record of marriage

2. Isaac Middlebrooks (1787-7Sep1863)

Isaac married Elizabeth Betsy Thompson (1789-1870) on 11Jan1803 in

GA
1)
2)
3)
4)

Naomi Middlebrook (1810-1863)

John Averetta Middlebrook (1811-1905)
Edward Middlebrooks (1813-1877)

Eli Charles Middlebrooks (1817-1875)
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5) Sarah Middlebrook (1822-)

6) Mary Jane Middlebrook (1824-)

7) Isaac Newton Middlebrook (1828-)
8) Elizabeth Middlebrook (1832-

9) Jabez Middlebrook (1833-)

Isaac married Ollie Phillips (1809-1860)

1) Sarah Julia Middlebrook (1836-)

Elizabeth Ann Middlebrooks (12Feb1791-17Nov1865)
Elizabeth married Aquilla John Cheney (1785-1869) in 1810
1) Sarah 'Sallie' Cheney (1811-1864)

2) Isaac Cheney (1812-1877)

3) Dr John Lisbon Cheney (1814-1877)

4) Perkins Cheney (1816-1839)

5) Saleta Alice Cheney (1818-1902)

6) Rufus Monroe Cheney (1821-1895)

7) Elizabeth Ann Cheney (1825-1909)

8) Caroline Cheney (1826-1904)

9) Mary A Cheney (1828-1882)

10)  Frances Cheney (1829-1854)

11) Lucinda Jane Cheney (1831-1908)

12)  Jasper Newton Cheney (1832-1911)

13)  Agquilla J Cheney (1832-1910)

14)  Louisa Cheney (1837-)

Abigail Caroline Middlebrooks (9May1795-3Sep1835)
Abigail married Bartholomew Short Stanton (1792-1845) in 1812
1) John Simeon Stanton (1814-1864)

2) Elizabeth Stanton (1815-1864)

3) Thomas Henry Stanton (1817-1888)

4) Losdisca Caroline Stanton (1818-1855)

5) William David Stanton 1820-1904)

6) Julia Frances Stanton (1821-)

7) Robert Short Stanton (1824-1887)

8) Emilia Frances Stanton (1826-1902)

9) Delitha Frances Stanton (1827-1911)

10)  Jane Rebecca Stanton (1831-1833)

11)  Batt Anderson Stanton (1832-1869)

12)  Liza Jane Stanton (1833-1926)
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8.32 | Relationship to Ann Henderson: GGGGGrandparents
(mother/mother/mother/father/mother)
Husband Marriage Wife
John Ellis Shell, Sr Date: 1Jun1786 Elizabeth 'Lizy' Malone
DOB: 1762 Location: Brunswick DOB: 26Feb1762
County, Va
City/State: Surry County, Va City/State: Mecklenburg
County, Va
Residence: 1800 - Newberry Children Residence:
District, SC
Residence: Sophia Weston Shell Residence: ~1805+ - Newton

(1789-1877)

County, Ga

Date of Death: 5Feb1818

Date of Death: 29Mar1847

Cemetery: Old Tranquil
Methodist Church Cemetery,
Newberry, Newberry County,
SC

Cemetery: Westmoreland
Family Cemetery, Griffin,
Spalding County, Ga

City, State: Newberry,
Newberry District, SC

City, State: Newton County, Ga

Father: Father:
William Shell Isham Malone
(1728-1807) (1734-1792)
Mother: Mother:
Amelia June Ellis Lucy Lanier
(1735-1799) (1740-1833)
NOTES NOTES

Note: There may have been a problem with
John's will in that he was considered to have
died intestate. One researcher reported that
two of his sons later sued because of
provisions in the will.

Unable to verify any 2nd marriage by Elizabeth
but records indicate that she move to Newton
County, Ga sometime after her husband died in
order to be near some of her relatives.

Per 1800 census, John owned 2 slaves.

John served under Capt John R Griffin in the
SC 6th Regiment. John later filed for a
pension based on his War of 1812 military
service. Uncertain if he received such a
pension.

Unable to prove that John Shell Sr was buried
in the Old Tranquil Methodist Church
Cemetery but others of his siblings are buried
here. Cemetery was abandoned to nature
many decades ago.
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Descendants of John Ellis Shell Sr and Elizabeth Malone

John Ellis Shell, Sr married Elizabeth Malone (1762-1849) on 28May1786 in Brunswick,
Va

1. Isham Malone Shell (30Mar1787-50ct1871)
Isham married Mary Polly Wright (1788-1880) on 16Apr1818
1) Laura Ann Shell (1819-1895)
2) James G C Shell (1820-1871)
3) Isham Abner Fletcher Shell (1822-1827)
4) Lucy Elizabeth Shell (1824-1907)
5) Ivey Malone Shell (1826-1906)
6) John Abner Zaccheus Shell (1829-1918)
7) Rufus Harmon Shell (1834-1886)

2. Edmond Shell (1788-Sep1832)
Edmond married Lucy Wright (1792-1819) on 9Nov1815 in Newberry County,
SC
1) Henry W Shell (1815-1875)

3. Sophia Weston Shell (31Mar1789-10Apr1877)
Sophia married Zere Pendergrass Middlebrooks (1782-1869) in 1808
1) Rev Azariah Burton Middlebrooks (1811-1881)
2) Thomas Lemon Middlebrooks (1813-1849)
3) Zacheus Asbury Middlebrooks (1815-1844)
4) Elizabeth Caroline Middlebrook (1817-1896)
Elizabeth married Rev Samuel Steele Bellah (1810-1865)
5) Anderson Crawford Middlebrooks (1819-1894)
6) John Coleman Middlebrooks (1821-1901)
7) Elijah Edmund Middlebrooks (1823-1906)
8) Isaac Simeon Middlebrooks (1825-1889)
9) Mary Anne Middlebrooks (1828-1895)
10)  Sophia Weston Middlebrooks (1830-1893)
11)  Zere Pendergrass Middlebrooks (1835-1862)

4. John Ellis Shell, Jr (1791-1856)
John married Sara Yeargin (1796-1860)
1) Onie Elizabeth Shell (1828-1904)

5. Drury Jones Shell (21Mar1800-14Jun1875)
Drury married Jane H Taylor (1814-1859)

Generation 8
Page 8- 107



1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)

Elizabeth J Shell (1836-1919)
Emeline R Shell (1842-1859)

James E Shell (1844-1899)

Sophia Temperance Shell (1847-1929)
John Thomas Shell (1848-)

Lucy A Shell (1853-)
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